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A Vision 
Realised,
Since our inception, the Institute of 
Singapore Chartered Accountants has 
grown to be one of the most dynamic 
accountancy institutes in the region, with 
an eye to be a strong voice in the global 
accountancy community.



A 
Milestone 
Reached.
In 2013, ISCA celebrated 50 years of Accountability, 
Professionalism and Trust, with stellar achievements and a 
vision for brighter prospects for the accountancy profession.
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With bigger and better things to 
look forward to, the Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants is ready to move to 
the next level and scale greater heights.

A NEW 
Beginning
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A FRESH
Identity

THE ISCA BRAND
The development of a distinct brand identity 

for ISCA is closely linked with the development 
of the Singapore accountancy profession.

With the aim for Singapore to be a global 
accountancy hub, ISCA sets its vision to be a 

globally recognised accountancy body,  
bringing value to our members, the profession  

and wider community.

A GLOBAL MINDSET  
WITH ASIAN INSIGHTS 

The ISCA brand essence – Global Mindset, Asian 
Insights – encapsulates ISCA’s unique advantages - 

strategically located in Singapore, the hub of  
the high-growth Asia-Pacific region, and  

having its sights set on the global  
accounting landscape. 



ISCA celebrates 50 years of 
excellence with a new name  
and brand identity.
“The new logo of ISCA symbolises the Institute’s 
move into the next phase of its transformation. 
The Institute has laid the groundwork by expanding 
its infrastructure and amending its Constitution to 
be in line with that of a global body.”

“The brand identity retains the Institute’s heritage while moving the 
brand forward, in line with Singapore’s development into a global 

accountancy hub.”

ISCA Advisor Mr Teo Ser Luck
Minister of State for Trade and Industry
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            A HOLISTIC 
PERSPECTIVE,



A SIGNIFICANT 
Step 
Forward
             In light of ISCA’s commitment to advance corporate reporting, 
      the Institute is making positive strides towards 
                      the adoption of Integrated Reporting or <IR>.

ISCA has been working actively with the 
             International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) 
     on raising awareness and gathering feedback on <IR>.

    ISCA’s move towards the <IR> framework for its annual report
also marks a milestone in its advocacy for a uniformly transparent,
  concise and holistic reporting in the region.
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“TO BE A  
TRAILBLAZER  

IN THE FACE OF  
CHANGE.” 



A STRONGER 
COMMITMENT

to manage 
issues that 
shape and 
define the 

accountancy 
profession 

today.

to strengthen 
synergies 
between 

Singapore’s 
accountancy 

community and 
the rest of the 

world.

to continue 
setting the  

bar in 
accountancy 
standards in 
Singapore.

to champion 
the interests  

of our  
members and 

the entire 
accountancy 
community.
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A Dynamic
Industry,

28,000
MEMBERS
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AN 
EMPOWERED 
COMMUNITY.
With 28,000 members, ISCA remains steadfast in championing 
the interests of the accountancy community. 
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A Momentous
Occasion

ISCA’s 
50TH ANNIVERSARY

To celebrate its 50 Years of Accountability, Professionalism 
and Trust, ISCA held two landmark events in 2013. The 

ISCA Golden Jubilee Dinner, held at the Marina Bay Sands 
Convention & Expo, provided an opportunity to honour the 

Institute's achievements and to aspire to greater heights. 
Equally significant is the Singapore Accountancy Convention 
2013 where industry professionals and luminaries gathered  

to tackle and exchange views on the future of  
the accountancy profession.
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On 2 July 2013, over 1,000  
guests attended ISCA’s Golden  
Jubilee Dinner held at the Marina Bay  
Sands Convention & Expo, and 
celebrated 50 years of Accountability, 
Professionalism and Trust.

It was a momentous occasion as members of the accountancy 
community received copies of the ISCA’s 50th Anniversary 
commemorative book, listened to the specially composed 
anniversary song “Count On Us” sung by Singapore jazz singer 
Claressa Monteiro, and watched a series of videos chronicling 
the Institute’s growth story since its inception in 1963.

Our celebration, however, was not just a retrospective nod 
to the Institute’s past achievements. More significantly, it 
was a golden opportunity to set sights on a brighter and 
more dynamic future not only for the Institute but for the 
accountancy sector as a whole. In his welcome address,  
ISCA Advisor and Minister of State for Trade and Industry,  
Mr Teo Ser Luck articulated, 

“Not only is the national accountancy body celebrating its 
50th birthday, it is also getting a makeover with a new name 
and logo.”

Thus began the unveiling of the Institute’s new logo and brand 
identity, signalling the revitalisation of ISCA’s vision “to propel 
the profession towards attaining international standing while 
bringing a unique Asian perspective to the global accountancy 
arena.”

New name reflects 
the Institute’s global 
vision, strategic role 
and its appointment as 
Designated Entity to 
Confer the Chartered 
Accountant of Singapore 
designation
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In July 2013, ISCA’s signature event the 
Singapore Accountancy Convention, 
brought together close to 900 delegates 
from Singapore and around the region to 
participate and exchange insights about the 
next phase of growth for the accountancy 
profession, and its significance in further 
developing Singapore as one of the 
important accountancy hubs in the world. 

A LANDMARK 
MEETING OF MINDS

The Singapore 
Chartered 
Accountant: 
A Beacon of 
the Asian 
Economy

Singapore 
Accountancy 
Convention  

2013
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From global trends to the changing role of 
accountants to aspirations for advancing 
Singapore’s status as an outstanding global 
accountancy hub, the hot-button issues 
tackled during the Convention were 
delivered by industry stalwarts.

“This year, in conjunction with the 
launch of the Singapore Qualification 
Programme and the introduction of the 
Chartered Accountant of Singapore 
designation, the Institute is taking on 
new roles and appropriately changing 
its name to the Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants. I commend the 
Institute for its bold moves to reshape 
the profession for the future.”

Mr Tharman Shanmugaratnam
Deputy Prime Minister  
and Minister for Finance

Top to bottom:
Mr Warren Allen - President, International  Federation  
of Accountants  
Sir David Tweedie - Chairman, International Valuation 
Standards Council, and former Chairman, International 
Accounting Standards Board;  
Mr Michael Lim - Chairman, Singapore Accountancy 
Commission

15

TRANSFORMING FOR TOMORROW: CHAMPIONING EXCELLENCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



2013 HIGHLIGHTS

NEW NAME AND 
IDENTITY

The Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
of Singapore becomes the Institute of 
Singapore Chartered Accountants on  
2 July 2013. It was launched at the Singapore 
Accountancy Convention 2013 and ISCA 
Golden Jubilee Dinner.
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2013 HIGHLIGHTS

ENHANCING MEMBERSHIP

AS OF 31 DEC 2013

TOTAL NUMBER OF MEMBERS 10%
Increase of

28,050
TOTAL NUMBER OF MEMBERS

25,435
AS OF 31 DEC 2012

ISCA’S NEW 
HOME
 
The Institute has shifted to 60 Cecil 
Street in a six-storey, standalone building 
called “ISCA House”. The new office 
location in the heart of Singapore’s 
business and financial district, brings  
us closer to our members.

NUMBER OF THOUGHT LEADERSHIP ARTICLES 
PUBLISHED IN MEDIA DURING THE YEAR

11
MEDIA MENTIONS IN MEDIA ARTICLES

306
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2013 HIGHLIGHTS

MEMBERSHIP PROFILE

MEMBERSHIP CLASS AS OF 31 DEC 2013

1,558
Fellow CA 
(Singapore)

17,346
CA 

(Singapore) 

7,400
Associate

669
CA (Singapore) 
who is a public 

accountant

338
Fellow CA 
(Singapore) 

who is a public 
accountant

739
Member-in-
Retirement

PROFESSION

27.0%

4.1%

16.8%0.7%
23.8%

10.4%

17.2%

Accountants/
Auditors

Business
Owners

C-Suite/ 
Executives

Lecturers/
Professors

Managers
Senior
Management

Others

AGE (IN YEARS)

84 per cent of ISCA members are below the age of 50,  
with close to 60 per cent below the age of 40.

21%

36%

27%

11%

5%

< 30

31 - 40
41 - 50 

51 - 60

> 60

GENDER

Males Females

36% 64%
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2013 HIGHLIGHTS

The IS Chartered Accountant is the official journal of ISCA 
and is read by 28,000 ISCA Members

PROMOTING CONTINUING 
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION

JOURNAL READERSHIP  
SURVEY

600
2013

2012

NUMBER OF CPE SESSIONS CONDUCTED  
IN 2013 COMPARED TO 2012

500
NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS IN  

2013 COMPARED TO 2012

14,761
2013

2012

11,167

QUALITY OF THE JOURNAL

RATED THE OVERALL CONTENT OF  
THE JOURNAL AS GOOD/EXCELLENT

2013 2012

77% 76%

AGREED THAT THE JOURNAL ARTICLES ARE 
RELEVANT TO THEIR WORK OR BUSINESS

2013 2012

77% 68%

AGREED THAT THE JOURNAL KEPT THEM UPDATED 
ON INDUSTRY HAPPENINGS AND NEWS

2013 2012

87% 86%

 TOTAL NUMBER 
OF EMPLOYEES

WORKPLACE 
GENDER DIVERSITY

118
27

91 Males

Females

TOTAL NUMBER OF
TRAINING HOURS

1,797
HOURS

ISCA EMPLOYEES AS OF DECEMBER 2013
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MESSAGE FROM THE ADVISOR
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DEAR MEMBERS

In 2013, the Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants (ISCA) 
celebrated its 50th anniversary as 
the national accountancy body. As we 
celebrate our accomplishments, we 
should also remember with humility 
and express our appreciation to the 
Institute’s founders, past office bearers 
and all our predecessors for their 
outstanding contributions and sacrifices 
to build the Institute to what it is today. 
We have come this far because we 
have stood on shoulders of giants.

As I reflect on the Institute’s journey 
to excellence in the past 50 years, 
it is evident to me that the Institute 
continues to make good progress to 
transform itself into a member centric 
organisation so as to better serve the 
diverse needs of our members. 

DEVELOP MEANINGFUL 
INITIATIVES FOR MEMBERS

ISCA is committed to understanding 
members’ needs and developing 
meaningful initiatives to support 
them. The Institute leveraged findings 
gathered from the 2013 membership 

survey that provided insights into 
members’ needs, from which it 
developed member-centric initiatives.

The number of events, seminars and 
workshops organised by the Institute 
in 2013 more than doubled, increasing 
from 28 in 2012 to 66 in 2013.  More 
importantly, many of these were well-
attended events such as the ISCA 
Breakfast Talks, Quality Assurance 
Review Seminars, Technical Clinics and 
Budget Updates, among many others. 
This had led to more than 30 per cent 
increase in Continuing Professional 
Education (CPE) hours awarded in 
2013, reflecting the improved quality 
and relevance of ISCA initiatives in 
meeting members’ needs. 

The Institute also significantly raised 
the level of technical support resources 
to support our members’ needs, 
especially for Small and Medium 
Practices (SMPs). We are cognisant of 
the support required by SMPs, given 
their smaller size, and are committed 
to help them in their growth to cope 
with changes in regulations and the 
business environment.  In this regard, 
ISCA rolled out a myriad of initiatives 
in the year to meet specific needs 

of professional accountants. For 
example, the Practical Audit Workshop, 
designed to improve the audit quality 
and enhance technical capabilities of 
SMPs, received positive feedback from 
participants of the pilot programme, 
with a number expressing that they 
look forward to attending the next 
two higher level workshops.  Similarly, 
four technical seminars organised in 
collaboration with Big Four public 
accounting firms, to equip our members 
with knowledge on the suite of new 
consolidation standards and fair 
value measurement standard, had full 
attendance. In addition, the Singapore 
Standard on Quality Control (SSQC1) 
practice guides and the publication 
of key findings of ISCA Financial 
Statements Review Committee  
(FSRC) received commendation  
from the International Federation  
of Accountants (IFAC) and attained 
strong support from the relevant 
government agency. 

HEIGHTENED BRANDING  
FOR THE INSTITUTE

The intensity of the Institute’s initiatives 
and programmes similarly raised 
brand eminence among members and 

As I reflect on the Institute’s journey to 
excellence in the past 50 years, it is evident 
to me that the Institute continues to make 
good progress to transform itself into a 
member centric organisation so as to better 
serve the diverse needs of our members. 

MESSAGE FROM THE ADVISOR
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the community at large. The number 
of media coverage of the Institute 
and its initiative had steadily gained 
greater prominence, in terms of size 
and visibility, in the mainstream media 
with an 18 per cent increase in media 
articles in 2013, representing an 
average of one article published per 
week day. The highlight of 2013 saw 
the launch of ISCA’a new brand name 
and identity with the brand essence 
- Global Mindset, Asian Insights that 
is aligned with ISCA’s goal to propel 
the profession towards attaining 
international standing while bringing a 
unique Asian perspective to the global 
accountancy arena.  The rebranding 
was well received by many, in particular 
members who commented “it was 
refreshing” and “it represented a 
positive change in the Institute”. 

Our rebranding efforts in 2013 
culminated with the successful re-
location of the Institute to 60 Cecil 
Street, in the central business district. 
This move represented a significant 
step in living out the brand essence and 
is in line with ISCA’s strategic direction 
to be in the heart of Singapore’s 
business and financial district, where 
the majority of our members work.

TRANSFORMATION TO ISCA

The transformation of ICPAS to ISCA 
in 2013 was a momentous milestone 
in the annals of the Institute. It was 
not just about a change of name for 
a rebranding exercise. It marked the 
beginning of the next phase of growth 
for the Institute and the assumption 
of new and significant roles as part 
of the national strategy to transform 
Singapore into the Asia-Pacific 
accountancy hub.

In this respect, the Institute was 
appointed by the Singapore 
Accountancy Commission as the 
Administrator of the Singapore 
Qualification Programme (Singapore 
QP) and the Designated Entity to 
confer the Chartered Accountant 
of Singapore – CA (Singapore) 
designation.

The Institute will help in promoting 
and establishing the global recognition 
and reputation of the CA (Singapore) 
designation by leveraging its 
international partnership networks of 
accountancy bodies.

With the CA (Singapore) designation, 
members will be more globally 
portable, and can represent the 
Institute with pride in international 
engagements. In addition, they would 
be more competitive in the industry 
with greater career mobility worldwide.

AN EMPOWERED ISCA 
MEMBERSHIP

As ISCA transforms to being a 
more member centric organisation 
and making good progress in its 
transformation to be a professional 
body with a global membership, 
outlook and standing, it remains crucial 
for the Institute to retain its focus and 
relevancy as a society for our members.  
Driving the Institute’s many initiatives 
and member offerings is the desire to 
build an empowered ISCA membership.

An empowered ISCA membership 
would have three key attributes. Firstly, 
they would be  equipped with the 
right skills and knowledge to meet the 
changing demands of the marketplace, 
and imbued with a confidence in 
their abilities to carry out their 
responsibilities in the most professional 
and effective manner.  

The next few years will be an exciting as 
well as challenging period for ISCA. I would 
like to commend the Institute’s leadership 
for their foresight and resoluteness in 
charting the path for the future and laying 
the foundations for ISCA’s transformation.

MESSAGE FROM THE ADVISOR
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Secondly, they would have a strong 
sense of pride in carrying their 
designation as CA (Singapore). 
Coupled with reciprocal recognition 
by employers, other professionals 
and the public, they would wear their 
designation as a badge symbolising 
professionalism, technical expertise 
and integrity. 

Thirdly, as members of a larger 
community, they would not only be 
keenly aware of societal developments 
but also possess a sense of 
responsibility and strive to  
serve the community.

LOOKING AHEAD

The continual and strong membership 
growth affirmed the value of the ISCA 
membership and the CA (Singapore) 
designation. The strong membership 
base and the recognition of the CA 
(Singapore) designation have provided 
a solid base for ISCA to build upon. 
Looking ahead, the Institute will 
continue to grow and empower its 
membership by further enhancing 
the professional development of our 
members, improving their technical 
expertise, increasing opportunities for 
networking within the profession and 
with the community, and providing 
other value-added services to our 
members.  

APPRECIATION

The next few years will be an exciting 
as well as challenging period for 
ISCA. I would like to commend the 
Institute’s leadership for their foresight 
and resoluteness in charting the 
path for the future and laying the 
foundations for ISCA’s transformation. 
On this note, I would like to thank 
ISCA President, Ernest Kan for his 

leadership and commitment in driving 
the transformation and making bold 
strategic changes over the years that 
kept pace with industry developments.  
I am confident that the next generation 
of leadership will be able to implement 
the various growth strategies to 
enhance ISCA’s vibrancy and bring 
it to greater heights as the national 
accountancy body, working closely 
with Government stakeholders and 
the industry to propel Singapore into a 
global accountancy hub. 

I would also like to thank all our 
members, office bearers, management 
and staff for their support and untiring 
efforts as ISCA continues to transform 
for tomorrow and champion excellence 
for the accountancy profession and 
sector.

Teo Ser Luck
Advisor
Institute of Singapore  
Chartered Accountants
Minister of State for  
Trade and Industry

MESSAGE FROM THE ADVISOR

23

TRANSFORMING FOR TOMORROW: CHAMPIONING EXCELLENCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



Our goal is to enhance the  
professionalism of the accountancy  
sector and contribute to strengthening  
the relevant infrastructure for the 
development of Singapore as a leading 
global accountancy hub.

MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
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DEAR MEMBERS

The Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) 
became the Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants (ISCA) in July 
2013. It was a significant milestone 
for the accountancy profession in 
Singapore. In the last five decades, 
ICPAS had fostered the development 
of many generations of accountancy 
professionals. Not surprisingly, many 
felt nostalgic about closing the chapter 
on ICPAS. 

However, we must march on to the 
drum beat of the changing times. As 
the Institute celebrated half a century 
of distinguished service, it has to be 
transformed as part of the change 
process to play a more strategic role in 
transforming the accountancy sector 
into a global accountancy hub.

The new name and corporate logo were 
unveiled during the Institute’s 50th 
Anniversary celebrations. Deputy Prime 
Minister and Minister for Finance Mr 
Tharman Shanmugaratnam officially 
launched the Institute’s new name at 
the Singapore Accountancy Convention 
where he was the Guest of Honour 
and delivered the keynote address. Dr 
Tony Tan Keng Yam, President of the 
Republic of Singapore who was the 
Guest of Honour at the ISCA Golden 
Jubilee Dinner unveiled the Institute’s 
new logo. The event was celebrated by 
more than 1,000 guests including our 
members and key stakeholders from 
government and industry.

JOURNEY TO ISCA:  
FROM SEEDING TO HARVESTING

The journey to ISCA began many 
years ago. The seeds were first sowed 
in 2009 when the Institute launched 
a strategic development plan to 
strengthen its capability in three areas: 
Accountancy Excellence, Industry 
Growth and Member & Human Capital 
Development (AIM). 

Since then, the Institute had made 
great strides in these critical areas 
of development. Our programmes 
and strong branding had helped 
to increase our membership base 
from about 20,500 in early 2009 to 
about 28,000 by the end of 2013, 
representing an increase of 36 per 
cent. Many initiatives were launched 
to raise the technical competency 
of accounting professionals in line 
with international best practices. 
We increased collaboration with 
relevant stakeholders to strengthen 
the capabilities of Small and Medium 
Practices (SMPs) and developed career 
pathways for practising and aspiring 
accountants. We also enhanced  
our presence internationally with  
extensive participation in regional  
and international forums. 

Without a shadow of doubt, the Report 
of the Committee to Develop the 
Accountancy Sector (CDAS) released 
in 2010 was most instrumental in 
hastening the pace of our journey.  
The Institute was identified as a key 
pillar in the framework to transform 
Singapore into a leading global 
accountancy hub for the Asia-Pacific 
region by 2020. It called for ICPAS 
to be transformed into a professional 
accountancy body with a global 
membership, outlook and standing.

To enable the Institute to move towards 
the achievement of this goal, relevant 
amendments through reforms were 
made to the constitution in the journey 
of ICPAS to become ISCA in 2013, 
as well as enhancing its resources 
and capability to fulfil its function as 
the Administrator of the Singapore 
Qualification Programme (Singapore 
QP) and the Designated Entity to 
confer the Chartered Accountant 
of Singapore – CA (Singapore) 
designation.

THE NEXT LAP OF OUR 
TRANSFORMATION JOURNEY

The theme of this year’s Singapore 
Accountancy Convention “The 
Singapore Chartered Accountant: 

A Beacon of the Asian Economy” 
aptly describes the direction that 
ISCA will take in the next lap of our 
transformation journey. Our goal is 
to enhance the profession of the 
accountancy sector and contribute to 
strengthen the relevant infrastructure 
for the development of Singapore as 
a leading global accountancy hub. The 
Institute will continue to enhance its 
own competency to better serve and 
create value for our members and 
stakeholders.

RAISING THOUGHT LEADERSHIP

The Institute has been building its 
capacity in several areas. In particular, 
I would like to take this opportunity 
to highlight the Institute’s efforts to 
develop its research and thought 
leadership capability. The research 
and thought leadership efforts by 
the Institute had gained traction and 
enhanced the Institute’s branding. 
For instance, the ISCA-KPMG Risk 
Management Study has been cited in 
studies of research and published in 
local and international publications.

ISCA also worked with the International 
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) 
to raise awareness, promote interest 
and gather feedback on <IR> in 
Singapore. ISCA’s <IR> initiatives 
included the ISCA-IIRC The Future of 
Corporate Reporting roundtable, post-
Singapore Accountancy Convention 
2013 workshop titled The Future of 
Corporate Reporting: Is Integrated 
Reporting the Answer? and  
ISCA-PwC <IR> Survey.

ENHANCING MEMBERSHIP 
STRENGTH AND DIVERSITY

The strength of the Institute is to a 
large extent determined by the size 
and diversity of our membership. As 
the national accountancy body, we 
can more effectively advocate the 
views and opinions of the accountancy 
profession with a stronger and more 
representative membership base. In 
this regard, we had initiated several 
programmes to create greater value 
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for our members so as to retain our 
existing members and attract new 
members to join ISCA. 

During the year, our senior management 
team paid numerous visits to the public 
accounting firms to get their feedback on 
how the Institute is doing and how  
we can support them better.

BUILDING COMPETENCY AND 
PROFESSIONALISM

One of the global issues impacting the 
profession is the proposed changes 
to the auditor’s report.  To prepare 
members for what is to come, ISCA 
held a forum with the support of 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory 
Authority (ACRA), Singapore CFO 
Institute, Singapore Institute of 
Directors and Securities Investors 
Association (Singapore) to enable 
members to learn from representatives 
from stakeholder organisations on the 
future of auditor reporting.

Today’s accountants need a broad 
knowledge base which goes beyond 
their areas of specialisation. To address 
this, ISCA continued to organise 
Breakfast Talk Series, where we invited 
experts to share their knowledge with 
members. The talks spanned diverse 
topics from corporate governance 
to risk management and ethics. We 
also organised monthly ISCA Mingles 
sessions, with a focus on professional 
networking and sharing of soft skills.

DEVELOPING PATHWAYS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Over the years, the Institute developed 
a range of education and training 
programmes to provide opportunities 
for our members to enhance their 
skills as well as pathways for their 
career development. This is one of 
the value-added services that the 
Institute offers to its members. We also 
offer selected programmes to aspiring 
accountants thereby adding diversity 
and depth to the talent pool in the 
profession. The Singapore QP is a three 

year programme designed to prepare 
both accounting and non-accounting 
university graduates who are aspiring 
professional accountants to attain the 
CA (Singapore) designation.

ENHANCING COMPETENCY AND 
PRODUCTIVITY OF SMALL & 
MEDIUM PRACTICES

There are more than 650 SMPs in 
Singapore. As such, SMP development 
is a key strategic focus for the Institute. 
We see ourselves as a strategic partner 
to SMPs. In our view, the development 
of SMPs is based on two pillars – raising 
technical quality, and capacity-building.

Under ISCA’s Quality Assurance 
framework, we have specific initiatives 
to provide technical support to SMPs. 
These include Singapore Standard on 
Quality Control (SSQC1) Implementation 
Support, Quality Assurance Review 
programme and Technical Clinics for 
knowledge sharing.

The adoption of the SSQC1 was 
an important initiative in raising 
international standards, the 
competency of local accounting 
practices in the performance of audits 
and financial statement reviews.  
In this area, ISCA rolled out a slew  
of initiatives to help SMPs implement  
the SSQC1. These include the issuance 
of comprehensive practice guides,  
pre- and post-implementation 
workshops as well as informative 
articles.

We also organised a series of Quality 
Assurance Seminars and developed 
a series of structured training 
programmes including the Practical 
Audit Workshops to support SMPs’ 
skills development. 

Under our Accountancy Productivity 
Roadmap, we produced the pilot 
productivity study for the accountancy 
sector in Singapore. We worked 
with SAP to produce a productivity 
scorecard and benchmarking survey 
report for the sector.

The Institute also encouraged SMPs 
to embrace technologies to automate 
some of their current manual work 
processes to increase productivity. In 
this respect, ISCA worked with the 
Infocomm Development Authority of 
Singapore and promoted industry-wide 
adoption of innovative Software-as-a-
Service (SaaS) solutions for practice 
management, corporate tax and core 
accounting/audit modules. The solution 
allowed SMPs to adopt technologies 
without incurring initial heavy 
upfront investments for software and 
infrastructure. Firms received funding 
of up to 70 per cent of qualifying costs 
including setup and adoption fee, for a 
period of up to 24 months.

In addition, ISCA facilitated the 
formation of the OneSMP consortium 
to encourage collaboration and 
knowledge-sharing among the SMP 
community. This common platform 
helped foster collaboration and 
networking, with the aim to raise 
practice excellence, quality and 
productivity.

VOICE OF THE  
ACCOUNTANCY PROFESSION

As the national body for accountancy, 
ISCA plays an important role as the 
voice of the accountancy profession, 
representing the views and ideas of 
members and accountancy entities to 
the relevant authorities. Over the years, 
the Institute had engaged government 
and industry stakeholders in discussions 
and consultations on a wide range of 
issues concerning the development of 
the accountancy sector.

In 2013, the Institute further 
strengthened our relations with key 
stakeholders in Singapore. Our active 
engagement with, among others, Ministry 
of Finance, Accounting and Corporate 
Regulatory Authority, Singapore 
Accountancy Commission, SPRING 
Singapore, Workforce Development 
Agency, and Infocomm Development 
Authority of Singapore, had promoted 
closer collaboration and facilitated the 
exchange of views.

MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
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The Institute organised the Pre-Budget 
Roundtable in January where industry 
leaders and accounting professionals 
shared their views and insights on the 
focus areas for the Singapore Budget 
2013. The Pre-Budget Roundtable is 
part of the Institute’s feedback platform 
which engages different segments of the 
community to gather views and provide 
feedback to the Government. 

During the year, the Institute also 
submitted comment letters to 
organisations such as the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), 
International Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Board and Ministry of Law, 
presenting our views on proposed 
legislative and regulatory changes, as 
well as amendments to accounting 
standards.

RAISING OUR INTERNATIONAL 
PROFILE

ISCA has and will continue to actively 
engage and enhance relations with 
key international organisations and 
participate in global and regional events 
to raise its profile in the international 
community. In addition, ISCA will 
continue to promote the recognition of 
the Chartered Accountant of Singapore 
designation regionally with the aim to 
establish it as the ‘gold standard’ for 
aspiring accountancy professionals in 
Singapore and internationally. 

In recent years, ISCA had participated 
more actively in regional forums. In 
May 2013, ISCA supported the Global 
Public Policy Committee (GPPC) 
and International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC) in organising the 
symposium “Asean Capital Markets – 
The Importance of a Strong Financial 
Reporting Environment”.

In February 2013, the Institute took 
part in the IFAC Chief Executives’ 
Forum in New York. At the Singapore 
Accountancy Convention in July, we 
had a panel of distinguished speakers 
including luminaries such as Mr Warren 
Allen, IFAC President; Sir David 
Tweedie, Chairman, International 
Valuation Standards Council and 

former Chairman, IASB, and Mr Mark 
Spofforth, immediate-past President, 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in 
England and Wales.

In November 2013, an ISCA delegation 
attended the 113th ASEAN Federation 
of Accountants (AFA) Council 
Meeting and participated in the 
18th AFA Conference hosted by the 
Kampuchea Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants and Auditors in Phnom 
Penh, Cambodia. The ISCA delegation 
was joined by representatives from 
Brunei, Cambodia, Indonesia, Laos, 
Malaysia, Myanmar, Philippines, 
Thailand and Vietnam, as well as 
those of AFA associate members from 
Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants, CPA Australia.

Also in November, ISCA furthered our 
international footprint and participated 
at the IFAC Council Workshop in Seoul, 
South Korea, where the Institute was 
represented as a panellist to discuss 
ASEAN perspective on attracting and 
retaining talent, given the talent crunch 
and increased demand for specialist 
skills in the accounting profession.

In the same month, representing 
the Institute, I attended the 30th 
Anniversary Session of United 
Nations Conference on Trade and 
Development’s Intergovernmental 
Working Group of Experts on 
International Standards of Accounting 
and Reporting in Geneva, Switzerland. 
I had the privilege to share Singapore’s 
perspective on human capital 
development challenges, in light 
of ASEAN’s pursuit of high quality 
corporate reporting. 

A MARATHON WITHOUT END

The journey to realise ISCA’s vision to 
be a globally recognised accountancy 
body and in supporting Singapore’s 
development as a global accountancy 
hub is a marathon. ISCA will continue 
to improve, innovate and re-invent 
itself regularly to remain relevant to its 
members, the accountancy profession 

and the business community at large. 
The world changes rapidly. ISCA and its 
members must change in tandem. It is a 
journey that has no end.

We have built a strong foundation on 
which ISCA can run this marathon. I am 
confident that with the united support 
of its members, the contributions 
of wise and experienced Council 
members and the co-operation of 
relevant government agencies, ISCA 
will continue to thrive for many years 
to come.

This will be my last year serving you 
as I step down as ISCA President 
when my term ends at the 2014 
Annual General Meeting. I would like 
to thank you, our members for your 
unwavering support these years.  It has 
indeed been a privilege and honour 
for me to serve you and to work 
alongside the Executive Committee 
and senior management team in 
ISCA.  The progress we have made so 
far is a testament in no small part to 
the dedication and hard work of the 
senior management team and ISCA 
staff.  To them, I would like to express 
my appreciation.  I would like to thank 
all Council members in the last five 
years who have trusted my leadership 
and they have been selfless in sharing 
their knowledge and experiences 
with ISCA, helping the Institute fine-
tune our initiatives and identify new 
opportunities and challenges on the 
horizon. In particular, I would also 
like to express my gratitude to ISCA 
Advisor Mr Teo Ser Luck for his wise 
counsel and support to the Institute 
over the past years.

Ernest Kan
President
Institute of Singapore Chartered 
Accountants

MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
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GROWTH OF THE SINGAPORE ACCOUNTANCY SECTOR

DYNAMIC AND EXPONENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT 

The Singapore accountancy sector 
plays an important role in the growth 
and development of the Singapore 
economy, in terms of providing access 
to professional accountancy services 
and talents needed by the different 
sectors of the economy. While 
predominantly catering to domestic 
demand, the accountancy sector 
itself is experiencing strong growth 
opportunities on the export of its 
professional services to the region.  
The sector has experienced double-
digit growth on a compound annual 
growth rate basis on its export of 
professional services to the region 
since 2000.

The Asia Pacific region is widely 
reported as the fastest-growing region 
for the international accountancy 
networks. Singapore, located in 
the heart of the Asia Pacific region, 
is suitably poised to ride on the 
possibilities of the dynamic economic 
growth for the region.

NATIONAL BLUEPRINT  
FOR GROWTH

The goal to develop Singapore as a 
leading global accountancy hub is a 
critical part of the bigger vision of 
Singapore becoming a leading Global 
financial and business hub. On the one 
hand, the accountancy sector will reap 
exciting growth opportunities for its 
services and professionals as Singapore 
advances its position as an international 
financial and business centre. On the 
other hand, the Singapore economy 
will be strengthened by a thriving 
accountancy sector. An accountancy 
sector with a strong international 
outlook and of global standing will 
boost the competitiveness and 
international position of the Singapore 
economy. 

Over the years, the accountancy 
sector has played a significant role 
in supporting Singapore’s economic 
development. The accountancy  
sector has been contributing about  
0.4 per cent share of nominal GDP 
annually since 2000. This translates 

to about S$1.28 billion of revenue and 
S$1.06 billion of value-add generated by 
the sector in 2008. Over 75 per cent of 
the sector’s revenue is generated from 
the domestic market. 

In the next decade, as Singapore 
aspires to become a global business 
and financial hub, the sector is primed 
to play a major role in supporting 
this transformation. The Report 
of the Committee to Develop the 
Accountancy Sector (CDAS), published 
in 2010, provided a blueprint for the 
sector’s development into a leading 
global accountancy hub in the Asia-
Pacific by 2020.  

The Singapore accountancy sector 
and profession are well-positioned 
to seize and help shape the exciting 
growth opportunities for the sector 
in Singapore and in the Asia Pacific 
region.

MAKING IT HAPPEN

CDAS has set out 10 recommendations 
to make this vision a reality. These 

The Singapore accountancy 
sector and profession are 
well-positioned to seize 
and help shape the exciting 
growth opportunities for 
the sector in Singapore and 
in the Asia Pacific region.
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recommendations build on Singapore’s 
strength and reputation for trust and 
excellence. The recommendations seek 
to deepen expertise in the accountancy 
sector, upscale the value of services 
provided from the Singapore-based 
public accountancy entities and 
promote the regionalisation of 
accountancy services. 

ISCA’S ROLE IN DEVELOPING THE 
ACCOUNTANCY SECTOR

One of CDAS’ recommendations 
was for ISCA to be transformed into 
a professional accountancy body 
with a global membership, outlook 
and standing, provide thought and 
practice leadership, and develop the 
accountancy sector. 

The process of transforming ISCA has 
begun. It has the expertise to provide 
strong leadership in research and 
development in many areas relating 
to the practice of accountancy, audit 
and governance. The Institute also 
collaborates with internationally 
recognised professional bodies, local 
universities and Singapore-based public 
accountancy and corporate entities to 
build up the thought leadership, and 
research and development capabilities 
so as to deepen the knowledge  
base and expertise in the  
Singapore accountancy sector. 

One of CDAS’ recommendations is to 
develop a Singapore-branded post-
university professional accountancy 
qualification programme, the Singapore 
Qualification Programme. It will be 
instrumental in enhancing the talent 
pool of qualified accountants in the 
sector. As the appointed administrator 
of this programme, ISCA plays an 
important role in developing the 
accountancy sector.

GROWTH OF THE SINGAPORE ACCOUNTANCY SECTOR

The Singapore accountancy sector and 
profession are primed to take part in the 
major transformation in our economic 
environment that promises exciting growth 
prospects over the next 10 years.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

OUR FUNDING MODEL

We are funded primarily through fees for professional courses and exams, and annual subscriptions for membership.

The Institute exists because of its members and therefore its primary purpose is to serve their diverse needs. For 50 years, 
ISCA has resolutely represented members’ needs to stakeholders, provided platforms for member interaction and networking, 
delivered resources for development of small and medium practices and developed pathways for personal career and 
professional development. 

VISION
To be a globally recognised accountancy body, 
bringing value to our members, the profession  
and wider community.

As envisaged in the CDAS report, ISCA will be transformed into a professional accountancy body with a global membership, 
outlook and standing.

Hence, our mission is centered on advancing and promoting the accountancy profession so as to develop Singapore into a 
leading global accountancy hub. 

ISCA shapes the local and international accountancy landscape through advocating the interests of the profession, maintaining 
professional standards and conduct, and representing the different roles of accounting professionals in government, business, 
and in society. Possessing a Global Mindset, with Asian Insights, ISCA leverages its regional expertise, knowledge, and 
networks with diverse stakeholders to contribute towards Singapore’s transformation into a global accountancy hub.

MISSION Advocate and be the voice for our members and 
the profession

Empower members to achieve their aspirations

Advance & promote the accountancy profession  
to develop Singapore as a leading global 
accountancy hub
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DELIVERING VALUE 
To our stakeholders

In 2012, the Institute rolled out a revitalised Vision and Strategic Plan which was built upon the Accountancy excellence, 
Industry growth and Member & human capital development (AIM) strategic objectives that were first unveiled in 2009.

As it laid the foundation for a longer-term view amid significant changes in the accountancy landscape, ISCA developed an 
enhanced strategic plan. The Strategic Plan 2013–2015 which marks Phase 2 of our transformation, builds upon the foundation 
laid in 2012, with a focus on key areas critical to the Institute’s transformation.

In the subsequent years leading up to 2020, ISCA will implement Phase 3 of our transformation, the final phase of our 
development for a better tomorrow as we take our place as a fully fledged global accountancy body.

STRATEGIC PLAN

2013-2015

2012

2013-2015

2016-2018

2019-2020

INTENSIFYING 
GLOBAL 

FOOTPRINT

ACHIEVING
RECOGNITION

GLOBALLY 
RECOGNISED 

PROFESSIONAL 
ACCOUNTANCY 

BODY

BUILDING AND 
OUT-FITTING 
STRUCTURE

STRATEGIC PLAN

2013-2015

LAYING THE 
FOUNDATION
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DELIVERING VALUE TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS

SUCCESS OUTCOMES AND STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Under Phase 2 of its transformation, ISCA developed an enhanced Strategic Plan 2013–2015. It builds upon the foundation of 
earlier plans, with a focus on key areas critical to the Institute’s transformation.

The success of the Strategic Plan 2013 -2015 is centered on three success outcomes

•  to be a reputable and respected membership body
•  to be valued as a strategic partner by key stakeholders
•  to be an employer of choice

Underlying the three success outcomes are four strategic priorities for the Institute.

The first is to understand members’ needs and develop meaningful initiatives. The second is to develop strong engagement 
and collaboration with stakeholders and partners, and the third is to achieve organisational effectiveness and build a dynamic 
work culture. Straddling these three priorities is the fourth, which is to strengthen branding and communications.

STRATEGIC PLAN

2013-2015
SUCCESS OUTCOMES

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

STRENGTHEN BRANDING and COmmunications

Be a Reputable and  
Respected Membership Body

Be Valued as a Strategic 
Partner by Key Stakeholders

Be an Employer  
of Choice

Understand Needs of 
Members and Develop 
Meaningful Initiatives

Develop Strong Engagement 
and Collaboration with 

Stakeholders

Achieve Organisational 
Effectiveness and Build a 
Dynamic Work Culture
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OUR PERFORMANCE 
OVERVIEW

34

TRANSFORMING FOR TOMORROW: CHAMPIONING EXCELLENCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



VALUED AS A STRATEGIC PARTNER 
BY KEY STAKEHOLDERS 

Increased Engagement and 
Collaboration with Government 
Agencies

During the year, Government 
stakeholders have been proactively 
engaging ISCA to tap on the Institute’s 
technical expertise. The Monetary 
Authority of Singapore had sought 
the Institute’s views on capital risk 
adequacy requirements for both local 
and merchant banks in Singapore. 
Government Statutory Boards such as 
Economic Development Board, Central 
Provident Fund Board, Infocomm 
Development Authority of Singapore 
and International Enterprise Singapore 
had also sought the assistance of the 
Institute to help them better align  
some of their special audit reports  
with the current auditing and  
assurance frameworks. Some  
of the collaborations include:

ACRA-ISCA Dialogue Session

ACRA –ISCA Training on XBRL

ACRA – ISCA Directors Proficiency 
Programme (DPP) Training for 

Company Directors 

Accountancy Sector survey with 
Singapore Accountancy  
Commission & ACCA

Strengthened Relations with 
International Agencies

A strong presence in the international 
arena presented opportunities for 
ISCA to strengthen relations with some 
of the world’s leading international 
agencies, recognised professional 
bodies and academic institutions. It 
enhanced its international presence 
through four speaking engagements 
at international events, namely IFAC 
Council Workshop 2013, United Nations 
Conference on Trade and Development 
(UNCTAD) Intergovernmental Working 
Group of Experts on International 
Standards of Accounting and Reporting, 
IFAC/GPPC symposium and the 18th 
AFA Conference. In addition, for the 
first-time, the Institute was invited to 
the invitation-only annual IFAC Chief 
Executives’ Strategic Forum. This forum 
is attended by the chief executives of 
a selected group of IFAC members 
such as ICAEW, AICPA and HKICPA, 
among others, to weigh in on major 
issues and areas of focus. It reflects 
the Institute’s enhanced international 
stature for ISCA to be included in 
such a prestigious group. ISCA also 
collaborated with CPA Australia on  
an advisory services study.

IFAC Council Workshop 2013

United Nations Conference on Trade 
and Development (UNCTAD)

IFAC/GPPC Symposium

18th AFA Conference

ISCA - CPA Australia  
Advisory Services Study

Close Relationship with Public 
Accounting Firms and Small and 
Medium Practices

ISCA developed and maintained close 
relationships with key stakeholders in 
the accounting industry, distinguished 
CEOs and CFOs, major accounting 
firms, and small and medium practices. 
During the ISCA CEO’s visits to the 
Big 4 public accounting firms and 
SMPs in 2013, the Institute received 
many positive feedbacks.  From the 
comments, we observed that there 
is rising confidence and increasing 
recognition of ISCA’s efforts to 
transform itself, and appreciation  
of the help and support provided  
through the Institute’s initiatives. 

In recognition of the Institute’s  
research and technical expertise,  
the Big 4 public accounting firms also 
collaborated with ISCA on research 
studies such as:  

ISCA -KPMG 
Risk Management 

Study

ISCA-PwC <IR> 
Survey

ISCA’s continued engagement with local 
and international stakeholders further 
underscores its stature as an important 
voice in upholding higher accountancy 
standards across many sectors on a  
global scale.

OUR PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
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OUR PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

PROVIDED BETTER SUPPORT OF MEMBERS’ NEEDS 

ISCA is committed to understanding members’ needs and developing meaningful initiatives to support members’ needs.

The number of events, seminars and workshops organised in 2013 more than doubled, increasing from 28 in 2012 to 66 in 2013.  
Many of these events such as ISCA Breakfast Talks, Quality Assurance Review Seminars, SSQC1 Workshops, Technical Clinics 
and Budget Updates enjoyed full attendance. This has led to more than 30 per cent increase in CPE hours awarded in 2013. 
This is a reflection of the improved quality and relevance of ISCA initiatives including CPE courses. 

Number of CPE sessions and participants: 
 

2013 2012

CPE sessions 600 500

Participants 14,761 11,167

CPE SATISFACTION 
SURVEY, SAMPLE SIZE

1000 78%

81% 76%

CPE COURSES PROVIDED 
 IS ADEQUATE

CPE COURSES IS EFFECTIVE IN 
MEETING THEIR TRAINING NEEDS

CPE PROGRAMMES HAVE ENHANCED 
ISCA’S MEMBERSHIP VALUE
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OUR PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

STRONGER MEDIA PRESENCE

2013 was an eventful year for ISCA 
where the institute’s news had steadily 
gained greater prominence, in terms of 
size and visibility, in mainstream media. 
The intensity of the Institute’s activities 
drove up the number of media articles 
by 18 per cent that garnered an 
increase in the media coverage by 14 
per cent in the year.

INCREASE

306 media 
mentions in  
media articles

18%

INCREASE

positive media 
coverage in 
mainstream media

14%

RAISED LEVEL OF THOUGHT 
LEADERSHIP

ISCA’s research and thought leadership 
contributions helped to strengthen  
its reputation as a valuable partner  
in the Singapore accountancy sector.

The Institute had sustained its 
momentum for generating thought 
leadership articles in 2013 with a  
total of 11 commentaries published  
in reputable mainstream local 
newspapers like The Business Times.

EXCELLENCE AWARD 

Awards reflect industry recognition of 
ISCA’s contributions and achievements.

The IS Chartered Accountant Journal 
was conferred the “Excellence Award” 
in the Best Cover Design category 
of the 2013 Asian Publishing Awards 
(APA). APA is Asia’s premier awards 
programme that recognises outstanding 
achievement in the development of 
successful business models using
the tools and multimedia channels 
available. The journal cover design  
was judged on its attractiveness,  
impact and relevance.

The Award reinforced the effective role 
that ISCA’s flagship publication can play 
in raising its standing in the region.

EMPLOYER OF CHOICE

As the national body for accountancy, 
ISCA is an ensign to the profession. 
Members and stakeholders look up to 
it not only for leadership in advocacy 
and developmental services but also 
to its example as a compassionate 
and forward looking employer. In this 
regard, the Institute is committed to 
investing in our people to enable each 
staff to realise their potential. The 
Institute’s human resource practices 
are geared towards nurturing and 
upholding a committed, motivated 
and happy workforce. As we continue 
to nurture our people and provide 
opportunities for them to realise their 
aspirations with a balanced work-life 
environment, we believe the Institute 
will, over time, be recognised in the 
industry as an employer of choice.
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ISCA has played a relevant and integral role in the 
Singapore accountancy sector for more than 50 years. 
Our members are at the heart of what we do and we will 
continue to focus on delivering quality products and 
services which are of value to them.  

With the three distinct missions and three success 
outcomes of the Strategic Plan in mind, ISCA conducted  
a wide range of initiatives in 2013 to further our members’ 
professional interests and shape the development of 
accounting issues. 

OUR 
MEMBERS
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MEMBER ADVOCACY 

Voice of the Profession

With a membership of 28,000,  
ISCA is the biggest professional 
body in Singapore. Being the national 
accountancy body, the large and strong 
membership base lends ISCA a strong 
voice for the profession. The resources 
and broad expertise within ISCA, 
enables the Institute to advocate the 
views and ideas of the profession and 
advance the interests of its members. 
As the voice of the profession, the 
Institute deems member advocacy to 
be a key priority, and one of the key 
ways we add value to our members.

We shared our perspective on topical 
issues in accounting, taking the lead 
to help members and the public 
understand topics such as changes 
in auditor reporting, procurement 
and the role of ethics, integrated 
reporting and cross-border taxation. 
Our commentaries were frequently 
published in Singapore’s leading 
business news daily, as well as  
regional publications.

Comment Letters

Over the course of the year, the 
Institute submitted comment letters to 
organisations such as the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), 
International Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Board (IAASB) and  
Ministry of Law, presenting its views 
on proposed legislative and regulatory 
changes, as well as amendments to 
accounting standards. Topics that 
ISCA had submitted comments on 
included “Reporting on Audited 
Financial Statements: Proposed New 
and Revised International Standards 
on Auditing”, “A Framework for Audit 
Quality”, “Leases” and “Insurance 
Contracts”.

PROVIDING INSIGHTS & 
CHAMPIONING THOUGHT 
LEADERSHIP

Auditor Reporting

One of the global issues impacting the 
profession is the proposed changes 
to the auditor’s report. To prepare 
members for what is to come, ISCA 

held the forum, “The Future of Auditor 
Reporting – Shaping Communication 
and What It Means For You”, with 
the support of the Accounting and 
Corporate Regulatory Authority 
(ACRA), Singapore Accountancy 
Commission, Singapore CFO Institute, 
Singapore Institute of Directors and 
Securities Investors Association 
(Singapore). It was a platform for 
members to hear from representatives 
from stakeholder organisations on  
the future of auditor reporting.

Integrated Reporting

ISCA has worked closely with the 
International Integrated Reporting 
Council (IIRC) to raise awareness  
andgather feedback on integrated 
reporting. The Institute partnered the 
IIRC to hold the Future of Corporate 
Reporting Roundtable, and held a 
workshop at our landmark Singapore 
Accountancy Convention that focused 
on integrated reporting.

OUR MEMBERS
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Research

The Institute completed various 
important and relevant present  
day issues research studies. 

A number of research projects were 
accomplished collaborating with 
partners or organisations of good 
standing, which allowed both parties 
to leverage each other’s strengths to 
enhance research insights, thought 
leadership and ongoing joint objectives. 
A key study was the ISCA-KPMG risk 
management study, it was an important 
inaugural study which looked at the risk 
management structures, systems and 
disclosure aspect of Singapore listed 
companies. This study and the forum 
held to discuss the findings and risk 
governance matters, with prominent 
panellists, was well attended by a full 
house audience of board directors 
and C-Suite executives. Both study 
and forum attracted prominent media 
coverage, which positively profiled 
thought leadership of both ISCA  
and KPMG.

Other important projects included  
the ISCA-CPA Australia joint study  
on advisory services offered by Small 
and Medium Practices (SMPs) in 

Singapore; Accountancy Sector  
Survey, working with Singapore 
Accountancy Commission and  
ACCA; and the annual ISCA  
Pre-Budget Survey and Roundtable. 

RAISING TECHNICAL EXCELLENCE 

Technical Resources and Quality 
Assurance

As the national accountancy body, it is 
imperative that we lay the groundwork 
for supporting the profession and 
empower our members with sound 
technical knowledge. Recognising the 
need to raise the standards of technical 
capabilities for our members in a 
changing global business landscape, 
ISCA has strengthened its technical 
knowledge centre and realigned its 
technical standards development and 
advisory functions so as to drive the 
changes that will position Singapore as 
the Accountancy Hub for the region. 

During the year, the Institute 
conducted monthly technical clinics 
for public accountants from SMPs to 
discuss issues and share solutions on 
specific accounting or auditing topics. 
These clinics had proven to be useful 
and articles summarising the highlights 

of each session were published in the 
monthly IS Chartered Accountant 
Journal for the benefit of the broader 
pool of members.

The Institute continues to maintain and 
upgrade the technical microsites with 
information, publications, frequently 
asked questions (FAQs), and other 
useful resources and reference 
materials that members can use to 
help them in performing their work. In 
addition, an online technical forum was 
set up to provide members a platform 
to share views on financial reporting, 
auditing and accounting related topics. 

The Institute initiated the Quality 
Assurance Review (QAR) programme  
to help public accountants improve 
their audit practices by identifying 
areas for improvement in the audit 
procedures and documentation.  
During the year, the Institute  
conducted 10 such reviews for 
accountants. The Institute also 
organised a QAR seminar which 
was attended by more than 220 
accountants. The seminar included 
presentations featuring common 
deficiencies identified in the QAR 
programme and solutions  
in overcoming them.

OUR MEMBERS

Pre-Budget Roundtable 2013 Panellists with Chairpersons Ms Jessica Tan, Chairman, Government Parliamentary Committee for Finance and Trade & Industry and ISCA President Dr Ernest Kan. 
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SMP Development

We see ourselves as a strategic partner 
to SMPs. In our view, the development 
of SMPs is based on two pillars – raising 
technical quality, and capacity-building.

Under ISCA’s Quality Assurance 
framework, we have specific initiatives 
to provide technical support to SMPs.
These include the Quality Assurance 
Review programme and SSQC1 
Implementation Support, as well
as Technical Clinics for knowledge 
sharing. We also organised a series of 
Quality Assurance Seminars and
developed a series of structured 
training programmes which included 
the Practical Audit Workshops to 
support SMPs’ skills development. The 
pilot run of Practical Audit Workshop 
Level 1, held in August/September 2013, 
was met with overwhelming response. 

To help SMPs in the implementation 
of SSQC1, ISCA rolled out a slew of 
initiatives. These include the issuance 
of comprehensive practice guides, pre- 
and post implementation workshops as 
well as informative articles. SMPs can 
also come to ISCA to find out about 
government assistance and incentive 
schemes available to them. 

To encourage collaboration and 
knowledge-sharing among the SMP 
community, ISCA also facilitated the 
formation of the OneSMP consortium. 
OneSMP serves as a common platform 
to foster collaboration and networking, 
with the objective of raising practice 
excellence quality and productivity.

To help SMPs in their 
internationalisation ventures,  
ISCA launched its first ever business 
mission to China for SMPs in May. 
Thirteen participants from 10 public 
accounting firms participated in 
the inaugural mission and had the 
opportunity to network with SMPs 
from Beijing. The Institute organised its 
second business mission to Iskandar 
Malaysia in September, and provided a 
networking platform for our local SMPs 
and Johor-based SMPs, as well as an 
overview of the development of the 
Iskandar Region. 15 Singapore public 
accounting firms took part in 
the mission.

Championing Productivity And 
Excellence In The Profession

Under our Accountancy Productivity 
Roadmap, ISCA produced the 
pilot productivity study for the 
accountancy sector in Singapore. 
The Institute worked with SAP to 
produce a productivity scorecard and 
benchmarking survey report for the 
accountancy sector in Singapore. 

To encourage SMPs to embrace 
technologies to automate some of 
their current manual work processes to 
increase productivity, ISCA facilitated 
an industry-wide adoption of innovative 
Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) solutions 
for practice management, corporate 
tax and core accounting/audit 
modules. This allowed SMPs to adopt 
technologies without incurring initial 
heavy upfront investments for software 
and infrastructure. Supported by the 
Infocomm Development Authority of 
Singapore, firms can be funded up to 
70 per cent of qualifying costs including 
setup and adoption fee, for a period of 
up to 24 months.

OUR MEMBERS
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In the increasingly digital business 
landscape, ISCA co-organised a 
training seminar on XBRL with ACRA 
for members on how they could tap 
on XBRL-enabled business data to 
gain business insights and enhance 
their decision-making process. The 
seminar was well attended by over 500 
participants who found the seminar 
effective with live demonstrations on 
the key BizFinx features and the new 
BizFinx filing system. 

Developing the Tax Profession

With greater cross-border businesses 
and an increasingly complex tax 
environment, demand for tax 
professionals in niche areas has 
increased. Multinational corporations  
place higher value on an accountant 
with professional expertise and 
knowledge of the tax regimes in all  
the countries it operates in. 

Singapore has great potential to be 
the regional centre of excellence in tax 
education and leading regional tax hub. 
One key area of focus is to develop 
deeper professional expertise in tax 
advisory work, especially to service the 

increasing cross-border investments 
and transactions in the Asia-Pacific 
region. 

The Singapore Institute of Accredited 
Tax Professionals (SIATP), an 
accreditation body for local tax 
professionals, set up by ISCA in 
collaboration with the Tax Academy of 
Singapore, continued its 2012’s efforts 
of putting our members at the forefront 
with specially-designed programmes, 
enhanced benefits and privileges to 
boost the standing of accredited tax 
professionals, putting them a step 
ahead of competition.

Since 1 January 2013, the GST Assisted 
Self-help Kit (ASK) declaration forms 
had to be certified by either in-house 
or external tax professionals who 
are accredited as Accredited Tax 
Practitioners (GST) or Accredited 
Tax Advisors (GST). GST-registered 
businesses applying for various GST 
schemes must now perform a self-
review under ASK and submit the 
certified ASK declaration form as one 
of the qualifying conditions. This is a 
reflection of recognition accredited tax 
specialists are gaining by the authorities 
and in the profession.
 

Accredited tax professionals also 
had privileged access to issues that 
were discussed in the various Inland 
Revenue Authority of Singapore 
(IRAS)-SIATP Dialogues. In addition, 
SIATP jointly organised two exclusive 
hands-on sessions on the new e-filing 
pilot system for members to get 
a firsthand experience of the new 
e-Form C. Through these initiatives, 
the accredited tax professionals gained 
competitive precursory information 
to developments by IRAS and their 
position on various issues.    
  
In addition, SIATP also established 
links with various tertiary institutions 
for accredited tax specialists to 
have greater access to interns who 
traditionally were linked up with the 
bigger consultancies only. Interns 
choosing stints at smaller consultancies 
would potentially have a more holistic 
internship programme as staff in smaller 
practices do not generally specialise in 
a particular area of tax.  

Besides promoting technical excellence 
with popular tax discussions, SIATP 
organised a specially–designed 
programme that equipped tax 
specialists with essential leadership 
skills to be more effective as they 
progressed up the corporate ladder.

OUR MEMBERS

With greater  
cross-border 
businesses and an 
increasingly complex 
tax environment, 
demand for tax 
professionals in  
niche areas has 
increased.

42

TRANSFORMING FOR TOMORROW: CHAMPIONING EXCELLENCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



RAISING OUR INTERNATIONAL 
PROFILE

Developing a Global Mindset,  
Asian Insight

Throughout the year, we continued 
to work at raising our profile in the 
global arena, by participating in global 
initiatives and international events. 

These deepened the engagement with 
our international counterparts and 
helped raise our international standing. 

(from left) ISCA President Dr Ernest Kan; IFAC President  
Mr Warren Allen; IFAC CEO Mr Fayezul Choudhury, and  
ISCA Executive Director Policy and Strategic Planning/
Industry Development Mr Yee Cheok Hong

For example, in February, the Institute 
took part in the IFAC Chief Executives’ 
Forum in New York. In May, we were a 
key supporting partner of the IFAC-
GPPC symposium held in Singapore. 

In November, an ISCA delegation 
led by ISCA President Dr Ernest 
Kan attended the 113th ASEAN 
Federation of Accountants (AFA) 
Council Meeting and participated in 
the 18th AFA Conference hosted by 
the Kampuchea Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and Auditors 
(KICPAA) in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. 
The ISCA delegation was joined 
by representatives from Brunei, 
Cambodia, Indonesia, Laos, Malaysia, 
Myanmar, Philippines, Singapore, 
Thailand and Vietnam, as well as 
the AFA associate members from 
Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants (ACCA), CPA Australia. 

ISCA also represented the Institute 
at the 30th Anniversary Session of 
UNCTAD’s Intergovernmental Working 
Group of Experts on International 
Standards of Accounting and 
Reporting. ISCA President shared 
Singapore’s perspective on human 
capital development challenges, 

in light of ASEAN’s pursuit of high 
quality corporate reporting. At this 
session, ISCA President Dr Kan also 
represented the Institute as a panellist 
at the IFAC Council Workshop in Seoul, 
South Korea. The panel provided an 
ASEAN perspective on attracting and 
retaining talent, given the talent
crunch and increased demand for 
specialist skills in the accounting 
profession.

During the year, ISCA CEO, Mr Lee 
Fook Chiew attended the IFAC Chief 
Executives Strategy Forum held in  
New York City. The IFAC CE Forum 
brought together chief executive 
officers of member bodies to discuss 
key issues affecting IFAC and the  
global accountancy profession.

Fostering International  
and Regional Ties

On 1 July, ISCA hosted the AFA  
Council meeting. It was attended 
by 37 AFA delegates as well as 
representatives from World Bank.

In September, ISCA hosted a 
benchmarking visit from the Kenyan 
Accountants and Secretaries National 

OUR MEMBERS

(Left) UNCTAD ISAR session in Switzerland. (Bottom Right) AFA Council Meeting and Conference in Phnom Penh, Cambodia.
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Examinations Board which was 
undertaking a major review of its 
CPA examinations syllabus. The visit 
enhanced ISCA’s international standing 
and provided opportunities for the 
profession to establish linkage with our 
counterparts in Kenya, paving the way 
for greater exchange in future.

In November, ISCA also hosted the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants 
and the Federation of Accounting 
Professions of Thailand as part of their 
benchmarking efforts. During the visits, 
the Institute shared with them the 
Singapore Qualification Programme 
and initiatives for SMPs.

DELIVERING QUALITY 
ACCOUNTANCY EDUCATION

Professional Development 
Programmes

Undoubtedly, the appointment of ISCA 
as the Administrator of the Singapore 
Qualification Programme (Singapore 
QP) and as the Designated Entity to 
confer the Chartered Accountant of 
Singapore – CA (Singapore) designation 
was one of the major achievements 
for ISCA in 2013. The Singapore 

QP is a valuable pathway by which 
our members can progress in their 
professional development and reach 
the pinnacle when they qualify to 
become a Chartered Accountant of 
Singapore. This internationally portable 
designation is an invaluable asset which 
will boost the development and career 
prospect of any accountant practicing 
in Singapore and globally.

Examinations And Qualification

In response to the CDAS 
recommendation to develop a globally 
recognised, Singapore-branded, post-
university, professional accountancy 
qualification programme (Singapore 
QP), the Institute established the 
Examinations and Qualification 
Division (EQD). The EQD has been 
active in formulating operational 
plans and infrastructure necessary 
to administer the Singapore QP. 
The Institute has made significant 
investment in manpower and Singapore 
QP operational costs. The Institute 
will continue to invest our resources 
and gear up our capabilities to meet 
the everchanging demands of the 
accounting industry.

Promoting Continuing  
Professional Education

In 2013, Continuing Professional 
Education (CPE) launched a record 
number of 600 sessions and will 
continue to provide continuing 
education programmes to meet 
members’ needs for knowledge 
improvement, skills upgrading and 
professional development. The 
response from members continued to 
exceed expectations with more than 
14,700 members participating in all 
our continuing education programmes 
from Business or Practice entities 
involving Accounting and Audit to Risk 
Management, Finance, Tax, Insolvency 
and Restructuring work. 

MEMBER ENGAGEMENT  
AND OUTREACH

Engaging our members is the most 
valuable activity that ISCA does and 
we look into fostering strong and 
engaging relationships with members 
and providing service in a timely and 
responsive manner.

OUR MEMBERS

As the national 
accountancy 
body, ISCA has a 
key role to play in 
the professional 
development of 
the accountancy 
profession in 
Singapore.
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During the year, the Institute 
conducted focus group and round table 
discussions to seek members’ views on 
issues ranging from the transformation 
of ICPAS to ISCA, implementing the 
CDAS recommendations to the ISCA’s 
role in administering the Singapore 
QP and as a designated entity for the 
Chartered Accountant of Singapore 
designation. The views of members 
were reviewed carefully and where 
possible were incorporated into the 
Institute’s strategies and activities.

In the course of the year, our senior 
management team also paid numerous 
visits to public accounting firms to get 
their feedback on how the Institute 
is doing and how we can support 
them better. Advancing our members’ 
interests is a continuous journey, and 
one that we continue to strive to take 
major strides in.

To show how social media can be 
used to widen networks and reach 
out to its members, ISCA organised 
its first Google+ Hangout on Air 
session in October. The Institute 
had the opportunity to interact with 
members, including a member from 
the ISCA Young Professional Advisory 
Committee (YPAC) and address issues 
that were close to their hearts. The 
Hangout session was significant as it 
demonstrated how ISCA was attuned 
to emerging platforms and tools 
that could enhance communication 
and efficiency. Today, the Institute is 
active in the digital space, including a 
presence on social media such as Blog, 
Facebook, Twitter, and YouTube.

In line with the re-branding of ISCA, 
the Institute’s monthly journal was 
re-branded as the IS Chartered 
Accountant Journal. The new title of 
the journal reflected the Institute’s 
new name and cast the spotlight on 
members, and the profession. Taking 
in feedback from our members 
from a readership survey, we have 
strengthened the depth and scope 
of the content with articles that are 

directly related to the work and 
business of our members. The articles 
go beyond the listing of updates and 
sharing of insights to include guidance 
on how accounting professions can 
apply these updates to their client 
projects and within their organisations. 

Social Activities  
and Networking Events

Besides fulfilling the professional needs 
of members, the Institute also creates 
avenues for our members to
network with one another at least 
once a month. As of December 
2013, the Institute had organised 
more than 35 activities where 1,300 
members participated. The activities 
are designed with the objectives of 
fostering members’ well-being through 
involvement with the community via 
social and sports activities that benefit 
our members, their family and friends, 
and aligned with the Institute’s strategic 
direction and objectives.

OUR MEMBERS

ISCA President Dr Ernest Kan “hangs out“ with ISCA members whose diverse profiles span CFO, academic, PAIB, SMP owner, young accountants and accountancy students. Session was facilitated by 
Melissa Hyak.
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Today’s accountants need a broad 
knowledge base which goes beyond 
their areas of specialisation. To
address this, we started the monthly 
ISCA Breakfast Talk Series earlier in 
2013, where we invited experts to
share their knowledge with members. 
The talks spanned diverse topics 
 from corporate governance to risk
management and ethics like Corporate 
Governance and Internal Controls, 
Implementing Enterprise Risk 
Management Framework, and Managing 
Fraud Risks. We also have monthly 
ISCA Mingles sessions, with a focus  
on professional networking and  
sharing of soft skills such as “Finding  
a Balanced Work-life” and “Unleash  
Your Natural Charisma”.

The Games

Since the 1980s, the Institute has  
been organising the annual ISCA 
Games, the “Olympics” equivalent for 
the local accountancy profession.  
Now, more than 20 years on, the 
Games continues to garner high 
participation rates, not just from 
individuals and ISCA members,  
but also from participating firms.

The ISCA Games 2013 saw record 
number of participating teams (13 firms 
and one Commerce team) pitting their 
skills across 26 games. By contrast, 
in 2012, there were 10 firms and one 
Commerce team competing against 
each other in 23 games.

The ISCA Games closing ceremony 
in November saw a huge turnout 
of participants coming together to 
celebrate the spirit of sportsmanship 
and promote the sporting values of 
excellence, friendship and respect. The 
ISCA Games is gaining more interest 
and envisions a future with greater 
participation rates as the accountancy 
network expands.

ISCA also participated in the Inter-
Professional Games (IPG) 2013 held in 
October where it topped four sporting 
categories, basketball, golf, squash 
and table-tennis to emerge the overall 
champion in the Inter-Professional 
Games (IPG) 2013. About 120 members 
and friends from the Institute, Institute 
of Engineers Singapore, Law Society 
Singapore, Singapore Institute of 
Surveyors & Valuers, and the Singapore 
Medical Association attended 

the Games’ closing ceremmony in 
October. Going beyond the wins 
and numbers, the IPG is an excellent 
platform to foster camaraderie among 
professionals while the sports activities 
contribute to our mental and physical 
well-being.

CSR, Scholarships and Awards

ISCA co-organised the International 
Accountants Day, now into its second 
year in Singapore, in November 
together with CPA Australia and the 
Singapore Accountancy Commission, 
which saw members of the profession 
donated thousands of books as a 
way to invest in the future of children 
through education and benefit those 
from less fortunate backgrounds. 
Some 3,000 accountants and finance 
professionals joined hands to secure  
a place in the Singapore Book of 
Records for the most number of  
people donating books at one location 
for underprivileged children.

OUR MEMBERS

The annual ISCA Games continues to be a superb platform to foster camaraderie, promote sportsmanship and encourage friendly competition among our members.
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The Book Donation Drive is one of 
the main activities in the International 
Accountants Day 2013 celebrations, 
which is believed to be the largest 
gathering of accounting and finance 
professionals in Singapore.

Guest of Honour Mrs Josephine Teo, 
Senior Minister of State for Finance 
and Transport, led the profession to 
donate books for charity and help  
raise awareness of the work of  
various charities.

Besides raising accountancy standards 
in Singapore, the Institute carried 
out several initiatives to do our part 

as a responsible corporate citizen 
by encouraging youths to engage 
in community service. ISCA was at 
The Boys’ Brigade’s (BB) annual BB 
CARES event that sought to involve 
BB members in a day of fun and 
meaningful befriending activities  
with beneficiaries of various Voluntary 
Welfare Organisations. A total of 70 
youths from BB and 30 youths from 
Beyond Social Services participated 
in the team building and adventure 
activities.
 

OUR MEMBERS

As the national accountancy body, 
ISCA has a key role to play in the 
development of accountancy  
education in Singapore. In this 
regard, the Institute awarded ISCA 
Scholarships, each worth S$2,000,  
to 12 deserving accountancy 
undergraduates from Nanyang 
Technological University, National 
University of Singapore and
Singapore Management University. 

 ISCA athletes, supporters and friends celebrating our hard fought IPG 2013 victory.
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TAKING THE
LEAD



GOING FORWARD, ISCA IS POISED 
TO GROW AND EVOLVE INTO 
AN INSTITUTE THAT UNITES 

AND EMPOWERS ITS MEMBERS 
THROUGH SOUND LEADERSHIP 

AND ACTIVE ENGAGEMENT.



“WE WORK AS ONE,  
SHARING THE VISION TO 

ELEVATE SINGAPORE’S 
STATURE AS A GLOBAL 

ACCOUNTANCY HUB AND A 
TRAILBLAZER IN THE FACE OF 
A FAST-CHANGING WORLD.”

COUNCIL MEMBERS

21



PROF PANG  
YANG HOONG
Vice Provost (undergraduate) 
& Dean, School of 
Accountancy
Singapore Management 
University

MS DANIELLE YEW  
WOON THENG
On leave from Ministry of 
Trade and Industry

MR YEOH OON JIN
Executive Chairman, Singapore
PwC LLP

MS GENEVIEVE 
CHUA 
Managing Director
Spicers Paper 
Singapore Pte Ltd

MR MICHAEL CHIN 
Deputy Managing  
Partner and Head of  
Audit and Assurance
PKF-CAP LLP

MR MAX LOH 
KHUM WHAI
Managing Partner,  
ASEAN & Singapore
Ernst & Young LLP

MR FRANKIE CHIA 
Managing Partner  
& International  
Liaison Partner 
BDO LLP

MR CHAN HON CHEW
CFO
Keppel Corporation

MR VINCENT LIM 
BOON SENG
Finance Director,  
Asia Countries
Motorola Solutions

MS LEE SHI RUH
CFO
Genting Singapore PLC

Vice President
MR R. DHINAKARAN
Managing Director
Jay Gee Group  
of Companies

President
DR ERNEST KAN 
YAW KIONG
COO  
(Clients & Markets)
Deloitte Singapore

Treasurer
MR HO TUCK CHUEN
Group CFO
JTC Corporation

MS LIM KEXIN
Technical Advisor, Tax
PwC Indonesia  
(on secondment from  
PwC Singapore)

MR PAUL LEE 
SENG MENG
Managing Partner,
RSM Chio Lim LLP

MR TAN KHOON GUAN
Founder & Director
K.G. Tan & Co PAC

PROF GILLIAN
YEO HIAN HENG
Associate Dean
Nanyang Business School, 
Nanyang Technological 
University

PROF HO 
YEW KEE
Head (Department  
of Accounting)
NUS Business School

MR LEE WAI FAI
Group CFO
United Overseas Bank 
Limited

MR ONG PANG THYE
Head of Audit
KPMG Singapore

MS JEANN  
LOW NGIAP JONG
Group CFO
SingTel



PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

MR LEE FOOK CHIEW
Chief Executive Officer

MS GOH PUAY CHEH
Chief Operating Officer

MR YEE  
CHEOK HONG
Executive Director 
(Policy & Strategic 
Planning/Industry 
Development)

MS JANET TAN
Executive Director 
(Corporate Services)

MS LIM AI LEEN
Executive Director 
(Technical Knowledge 
Centre & Quality 
Assurance)
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

-  Ms Lee Shi Ruh, Chief Financial 
Officer, Genting Singapore

-  Mr Lee Wai Fai, Group Chief 
Financial Officer, UOB Group

-  Mr Ong Pang Thye, Head of Audit, 
KPMG Singapore

-  Mr Tan Khoon Guan, Founder & 
Director, K.G. Tan & Co PAC

With the addition of the new Council 
Members, about one-third of the ISCA 
Council now comprises new faces.  
The injection of fresh leadership talent 
is in line with the Institute’s goal of 
leadership revitalisation through an 
active and dynamic renewal process.

DIVERSITY

The leadership renewal also resulted 
in a more diverse Council with greater 
representation from the younger 
demographics. This new composition 
closely reflects the profile of the 
Institute’s membership, 84 per cent of 
whom are below 50 years, with close  
to 60 per cent below 40.

grateful for their invaluable and selfless 
contributions in fulfilling its mission. 

REJUVENATION

In recent years, the Institute had 
initiated measures to rejuvenate its 
leadership through a dynamic renewal 
process of Council members. It had 
been successful in inducting new 
talents by drawing in both senior 
accounting executives who are 
stalwarts in their respective business 
fields as well as younger and dynamic 
professionals from the industry. The 
leadership renewal strengthens and 
equips the Council with a more diverse 
range of expertise so as to better meet 
the Institute’s changing needs and roles.

ISCA welcomed six distinguished 
members into the Council in 2013
The new ISCA Council Members are:

-  Mr Chan Hon Chew, Chief Financial 
Officer, Keppel Corporation

-  Mr Paul Lee Seng Meng, Managing 
Partner, RSM Chio Lim LLP

VIBRANT COMPOSITION

The composition of the Council  
reflects the diversity and vibrancy 
of the Institute’s members. Council 
members comprise of high-flyers in the 
corporate world and public accounting 
profession. They bring with them 
best-in-class expertise, wide ranging 
experiences, strong networks and 
connections.

With their diverse background, 
leadership skills, industry knowledge 
and extensive experience, our Council 
Members were able to support ISCA 
in reaching greater heights in a rapidly 
changing business landscape. They 
contribute their professional expertise 
through active participation in the 
Institute’s committees and Council 
meetings. 
 
This is especially crucial as the Institute 
continues to work towards our vision 
of gaining global recognition, and 
propelling Singapore to be a global 
accountancy hub. The Institute is 

The Institute’s Council provides the 
oversight and guidance on strategies 
for pursuing its vision to be a globally 
recognised accountancy body, advancing 
members’ interests, managing risks  
and establishing high standards of 
governance practices. 

The Council meets 7 times a year to review 
operational performance, effectiveness  
of management to implement strategies  
and policies. The Council provides  
expert opinions on financial management, 
sustainable corporate strategies and 
stakeholder relations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

The role of the Nomination  
Committee is to oversee the 
nomination process in relation to 
the election of Council members, 
office bearers and appointments to 
ISCA committees. In this respect, the 
Nominations Committee assists the 
Council in sourcing and identifying 
candidates for appointments to the 
Council and its committees as well as 
external appointments. The Committee 
is also responsible for ensuring the 
eligibility of candidates for election 
to Council and the integrity of the 
nomination process.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three 
Council members, not being office 
bearers, whose role is to ensure the 
integrity of the financial statements 
through its oversight of the Institute’s 
financial reporting process, its internal 
control system as well as its internal 
and external audit functions. In the 
course of discharging this role, the 
Audit Committee reviews the selection 
and appointment of external and 
internal auditors, the external and 
internal audit plans and the Institute’s 
risk management and internal control 
practices. The Audit Committee also 
reviews significant findings arising 
from the audit and the annual financial 
statements prior to approval by the 
Council.  The Audit Committee is 
further able to investigate any  
matters within its purview, as it  
deems appropriate.

THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  
AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

The Executive Committee (EXCO) 
comprising the Institute’s office 
bearers – President, Vice President and 
Treasurer, meets monthly to deal with 
all matters relating to the development 
of broad policies and strategies, 
ensuring that the Institute is aligned 
in transforming Singapore into an 
accountancy hub by 2020.

The Principal Officers comprise the 
senior management of the Institute 
and they are responsible for leading 
ISCA and managing its activities to 
implement the strategies and direction 
of the Council.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

The Council has pleasure in presenting its 2013/2014 Annual Report and Accounts of the Institute for the year ended  
31 December 2013.

At the first Council meeting held in April 2013, the following Council members were elected as office bearers:

President   -  Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong
Vice President  -  R. Dhinakaran
Treasurer   -  Ho Tuck Chuen

THE COUNCIL

The 2013/2014 Council held 7 ordinary meetings from April 2013 to March 2014.  Column A indicates the number of Council 
meetings the member attended; column B shows the number of committees he/she sits on.

A B

Chan Hon Chew 4 1

Chia Soo Hien, Frankie 5 1

Chin Sek Peng, Michael 5 1

Chua Kwee Huay, Genevieve 7 1

Ho Tuck Chuen 6 4

Ho Yew Kee 5 4

Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong 7 3

Lee Seng Meng, Paul 6 2

Lee Shi Ruh 5 1

Lee Wai Fai 6 1

Lim Boon Seng, Vincent 7 2

Lim Kexin 6 2

Loh Khum Whai, Max 6 2

Low Ngiap Jong, Jeann 3 2

Ong Pang Thye 7 1

Pang Yang Hoong 5 1

R. Dhinakaran 5 2

Tan Khoon Guan 5 1

Yeo Hian Heng, Gillian 4 1

Yeoh Oon Jin 5 2

Yew Woon Theng, Danielle 6 3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Members
1.  Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong (President)
2.  R. Dhinakaran  (Vice President)
3.  Ho Tuck Chuen (Treasurer)

The Executive Committee is the 
executive arm of the Council 
responsible for all matters relating to 
the development of broad policies 
and strategies, and exercises a general 
oversight of the work programmes, 
initiatives, operational matters and 
other financial matters of the Institute.

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE 

Members
1. Yeoh Oon Jin (Chairman)
2. Andy Gan Lai Chiang
3. Ho Tuck Chuen
4. Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong 
5. Steven Phan Swee Kim

The Nominations Committee assists 
the Council in sourcing and identifying 
candidates for internal and external 
appointments including candidates for 
election to the Council. It also reviews 
and makes recommendations to the 
Council on the appointments to ISCA 
various committees. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE
 
Members
1.  Max Loh Khum Whai (Chairman)
2.  Ho Yew Kee
3.  Paul Lee Seng Meng

The Audit Committee plays a critical 
role in ensuring the integrity of the 
financial statements through its 
oversight of the Institute’s financial 
reporting process, the internal control 
system and the audit function.

Another role of the committee includes 
the review of the annual financial 
statements prior to approval by the 
Council, as well as the evaluation  
of significant findings arising from  
the audit. 

AUDITING AND ASSURANCE 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Members
1.  Yeoh Oon Jin (Chairman)
2.  Shariq Barmaky (Deputy Chairman)
3.  Basil Chan
4.  Chen Yiyi
5.  Foo See Liang
6.  Goh Kia Hong
7.  Khor Boon Hong
8.  Kuan Cheng Tuck
9.  Lee Eng Kian
10.  Paul Lee Seng Meng
11.  Lee Sze Yeng
12.  Loh Lee Kim
13.  Mak Keat Meng
14.  Ng Kian Hui
15.  Ng Wee Leng  

(Alternate: Ms Julie Ng)
16.  Siew Wun Mui
17.  Tan Boon Siong
18.  Toh Kim Teck
19.  Julia Tay – Observer from ACRA 

(Alternate: Sherry Quark)
20. John Teo Woon Keng
21.  Jack Wang Ying Yang

The Auditing and Assurance  
Standards Committee (AASC)  
develops Singapore’s auditing 
and assurance standards and 
monitors standards-related policy 
and implementation issues, giving 
consideration to the need for 
guidance. AASC also takes a lead 
role in advocating the views of the 
profession in Singapore to influence 
the development of international 
standards.

BANKING & FINANCE COMMITTEE

Members
1.  Chua Kim Chiu (Chairman)
2.  Cheng Ai Phing (Deputy 

Chairperson)
3.  Balwinder Singh Bagary 
4.  Chan Yoke Meng 
5.  Chow Khen Seng
6.  Ward Coombs
7.  Ho Kok Yong 
8.  Leong Kok Keong
9.  Jek Lim
10.  Lim Tze Chern 
11.  Dominic Nixon
12.  Ong Ai Boon
13.  Ong Siew Mooi 
14.  Sandy Tee Chee Han
15.  Brian Thung Hock Lai 

The Banking and Finance Committee 
works closely with the banks and 
financial institutions as well as 
regulatory authorities to address 
accounting, auditing and regulatory 
issues affecting the banking and 
finance industry. This typically involves 
deliberating and providing comments 
on proposed changes in accounting and 
auditing standards as well as regulatory 
requirements affecting the industry. 
It also collaborates with various 
regulatory authorities for the issue  
of guidance on additional procedures 
to be performed by the auditors in 
connection with industry-specific 
reporting requirements and on the 
form and content of such reports.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF EDUCATION AND 
EXAMINERS 

Members
1. Gillian Yeo Hian Heng (Chairperson)
2. Cheung Pui Yuen
3. Ho Yew Kee
4. Ong Chai Yan
5. Pang Yang Hoong
6. Sarjit Singh
7. Patricia Tan Mui Siang

The Board of Education and Examiners 
Committee provides oversight over 
the ISCA Professional Examination and 
plays a significant role in the approval 
of policies, guidelines and procedures 
relating to examination administration, 
accreditation of academic programmes 
and various aspects of programme 
admission, developed by the 
Examinations and Qualification 
Department. 

CFO COMMITTEE 

Members 
1.  Jeann Low Ngiap Jong 

(Chairperson)
2.  Chia Nam Toon
3.  Chan Hon Chew
4.  Chow Kam Wing
5.  Genevieve Chua
6.  Goh Geok Cheng
7.  Danny Heng Hock Kiong @ Heng 

Hang Siong 
8.  Ho Tuck Chuen
9.  Lee Shi Ruh
10.  Lee Wai Fai 
11.  Anita Ler
12.  Vincent Lim Boon Seng
13.  Tommy Loke Hip Meng 
14.  Wong Lai Ping
15.  Danielle Yew Woon Theng

The CFO Committee provides 
guidance on initiatives to foster the 
development of finance professionals 
and promote the relevance of having 
finance professionals who are CA 
(Singapore). The Committee also 
provides direction and gathers 
feedback on relevant issues including 
new laws, regulations, standards 
and guidelines affecting finance 
professionals.

COMMUNITY, SOCIAL & SPORTS 
ADVISORY PANEL 

Members
1.  Vincent Lim Boon Seng (Chairman)
2.  Lim Kexin (Deputy Chairperson) 
3.  Philip Aw Vern Chun 
4.  Anna Chen Heung Kwan
5.  Khoo Shee Fei
6.  Helen Lee Lai Ken
7.  Eleana Tan Sze Ying
8.  Yoong Ee Chuan

The Panel responded to the diverse 
spread and needs of members’ 
interests and worked with Members 
Engagement & Events to organise a 
wide range of events and activities, 
which covers the 3 pillars of 
Community, Social and Sports 
in the Panel.

CORPORATE FINANCE  
COMMITTEE 

Members
1.  Tham Tuck Seng (Chairman)
2.  Chay Yiowmin
3.  Ho Kim Wai
4.  Mah Kah Loon
5.  Ng Jiak See
6.  Tan Tiong Heng
7.  Tan Tze-Gay
8.  Roger Tay Puay Cheng
9.  Teh Seng Leong
10.  Wong Kian Kok
11.  Danielle Yew Woon Theng

The Corporate Finance Committee 
works closely with regulatory 
authorities, corporate finance and 
investment banking organisations to 
address issues relating to corporate 
finance. This typically involves seeking 
the views of relevant stakeholders and 
providing inputs on matters pertaining 
to accounting and auditing standards, 
consultations papers to international 
standard setters and regulatory 
requirements affecting the profession.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 

Members
1.  R. Dhinakaran (Chairman)
2.  Bill Bowman
3.  Anthony Cheong Fook Seng
4.  Robin Chin Sin Beng
5.  Foo See Liang
6.  Andy Gan Lai Chiang
7.  Ho Yew Kee
8.  Irving Low
9.  Mohan Menon
10.  Seah Gek Choo
11.  Albert Tan Tiong Heng
12.  Cheng Weng Hong

A key objective of the Corporate 
Governance Committee is to stress the 
importance of corporate governance 
issues as well as promote fairness, 
transparency and accountability in the 
conduct of business to our members 
and the general public. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL REPORTING 
COMMITTEE

Members
1.  Tham Sai Choy (Chairman)
2.  Nagaraj Sivaram (Deputy Chairman)
3.  Sajjad Akhtar
4.  Shariq Barmaky
5.  Cheng Ai Phing 
6.  Chua Kim Chiu 
7.  Susan Foong Chooi Chin 
8.  Peter Jacob 
9.  Keoy Soo Earn
10.  Irene Khoo 
11.  Reinhard Klemmer 
12.  Kok Moi Lre
13.  Thanabalan Ladamuthu 
14.  Mikkel Bilyk Larsen
15.  Max Loh Khum Whai
16.  Ng Eng Juan
17.  Ng Joo Khin
18.  Tan Boon Siong
19.  Tan Chin Poh 
20. Paul Tan
21.  Pearl Tan Hock Neo
22.  Tan Seng Choon 
23.  Henry Tan Song Kok

The Financial Reporting Committee 
proactively engages industry groups 
and other organisations on financial 
reporting topics and issues in 
Singapore. Robust discussions are also 
held by the Committee and its sub-
committees on emerging topics and 
issues. The Committee also reaches out 
to the accounting profession to raise 
public awareness and issue guidance 
to assist the professional in overcoming 
application challenges of accounting 
standards.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REVIEW 
COMMITTEE 

Members
1.  Cheng Ai Phing (Chairperson)
2.  Kok Moi Lre (Deputy Chairperson)
3.  Tan Swee Ho (Deputy Chairman)
4.  Chan Yew Kiang
5.  Victor Chang Fook Kay
6.  Chen Voon Hoe
7.  Robin Chin Sin Beng
8.  Choo Eng Beng
9.  Goh Swee Hong
10.  Adrian Koh Hian Yan
11.  Lai Keng Wei
12.  David Anthony Leaver
13.  Lee Eng Kian
14.  Jacqueline Lew Wan Ming
15.  Paul Leow Chung Chong Yam Soon
16.  Ng Hock Lee
17.  Andrew Lim Ann Loo
18.  William Ng Wee Liang
19.  Pong Siew Inn
20. Poon Yew Wah
21.  Douglas Tan Kay Yeow
22.  Tay Guat Peng
23.  Tham Chee Soon
24. Joseph Toh Kian Leong
25.  Michael Tsia Chee Wah
26.  David Jason Waller
27.  Wong Sook Yee
28.   Woo E-Sah
29.  James Xu Jun

The fundamental objective of the 
Financial Statements Review Committee 
(FSRC) is to promote high quality 
corporate financial reporting and 
raise the standard of the accountancy 
profession in Singapore. It executes this 
by reviewing audited accounts of listed 
and non-listed companies and drawing 
practising members’ attention to areas 
where the presentation or content of 
the accounts falls short of compliance 
with the Singapore Financial Reporting 
Standards (SFRSs) and the Singapore 
Standards on Auditing (SSAs). The FSRC 
shares its findings with members and the 
public at technical workshops and the 
annual FSRC seminar.

The Core Group, chaired by Ms Cheng 
Ai Phing, comprises the chairpersons of 
five sub-committees as follows:

SUB-
COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

1 Kok Moi Lre

2 Tan Swee Ho 

3 David Anthony 
Leaver

4 Goh Swee Hong

5 Joseph Toh Kian 
Leong

These sub-committees chaired by 
the respective chairpersons perform 
quality reviews on the accounts and 
queries raised are further deliberated 
by the Core Group before they are 
issued. The replies to these queries 
are similarly considered by the sub-
committee members and Core Group 
before recommendations on non-
compliance of the SFRSs and SSAs are 
presented to the FSRC Committee for 
deliberation and approval. 

Aside from the quality reviews as 
mentioned above, the Core Group would 
identify emerging accounting issues, 
deliberate on them and where necessary 
FSRC would consult and work with 
the Financial Reporting Committee to 
provide guidance to members.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
SERVICES ADVISORY PANEL 

Members
1.  Lee Jeng Wah (Chairman)
2.  Yoong Ee Chuan (Deputy Chairman)
3.  Benjamin Chiang Wing Wai
4.  Philip Kwa Teow Hua
5.  Lyon Poh Leong Yeow
6.  Siah Weng Yew

The Information Technology Services 
Advisory Panel’s role is to advise 
the Institute on IT-related matters in 
meeting its strategic objectives; and to 
advance the member’s interests in and 
adoption of IT.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INSOLVENCY PRACTICES 
COMMITTEE 

Members
1. Bob Yap (Chairman)
2. Aw Eng Hai
3. Chan Yee Hong
4. Abuthahir Abdul Gafoor
5. Goh Thien Phong 
6. Victor Goh Yeow Kiang
7. Andrew Grimmett
8. Leow Quek Shiong
9. Seshadri Rajagopalan 

The Insolvency Practices Committee 
advises the Institute on the ethical 
and technical aspects of the practice 
of insolvency and also any proposed 
insolvency legislature. It also engages 
and liaises with regulatory agencies 
on matters relating to the insolvency 
profession.

INSURANCE COMMITTEE 

Members
1.  Mak Keat Meng (Chairman)
2.  Woo Shea Leen (Deputy Chairperson)
3.  Tony Cheong Jin Keat
4.  Chew Chu Seng
5.  Eileen Giam
6.  Lau Kam Yuen
7.  Jason Neo Choong Hua
8.  Rina Tan Bee Hong

The Insurance Committee advises 
the Institute on accounting and 
auditing matters relating to the 
insurance industry. It also works 
with both regulatory authorities 
and insurance associations on such 
matters, and where appropriate, makes 
recommendations on such matters to 
the regulatory bodies.

IS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 
JOURNAL EDITORIAL  
ADVISORY PANEL 

Members 
1. Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong (Chairman) 
2. Lee Su Shyan (Deputy Chairperson) 
3. Tan Hun Tong (Deputy Chairman) 
4. Cheng Nam Sang
5. Ho Tuck Chuen 
6. Jeann Low 
7. Stuart Pallister

The IS Chartered Accountant Journal 
Editorial Advisory Panel provides 
guidance to the editorial team on 
the character and direction of the 
journal, defines the editorial’s focus 
and coverage, and plays a significant 
role as informed sources on emerging 
accountancy and business issues and 
opportunities to enhance the content 
of the journal.

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE 

Members 
1. Ho Yew Kee (Chairman)
2. Rick Chan Hock Leong
3. Khoo Teng Aun
4. Ong Pang Thye
5. Danielle Yew

The Committee is responsible 
for reviewing existing admission 
requirements and membership matters. 
It makes recommendations to the 
Council on the admission of new 
members, membership reclassifications, 
resignations and reinstatements as 
well as advises the Council on related 
membership matters from time to time.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING  
PRACTICE COMMITTEE 

Members 
1. Frankie Chia (Chairman)
2. Raymond Chan Tuck Chee
3. Michael Chin Sek Peng
4. Francis Chin Yoke Lan
5. Denis Allen Usher
6. Michael Heng Yeow Meng
7. Eleanor Lee Kim Lin
8. John Lim Geok Peng
9. Lim Yeong Seng
10. John Tan Hon Chye
11. Tan Khoon Guan

The Public Accounting Practice 
Committee (PAPC) deals with issues 
relating to the public accounting 
profession, especially matters affecting 
Small and Medium Practices (SMPs); 
participates in dialogue sessions 
with the Accounting and Corporate 
Regulatory Authority (ACRA) and other 
relevant authorities, and assists in other 
related ad hoc assignments. 

SINGAPORE INSTITUTE  
OF ACCREDITED TAX 
PROFESSIONALS BOARD

Members 
1.  Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong (Chairman)
2.  Tan Boen Eng (Deputy Chairman)
3.  Huey Min Chia-Tern
4.  Fang Fang
5.  Khoo Ho Tong 
6.  David Lee Thau Khon 
7.  Low Weng Keong 
8.  Latha Mathew 
9.  Simon Poh
10.  Alan Ross 
11.  Tan Kay Kheng
12.  Yee Fook Hong 

SIATP, through various Committees, 
represents the profession in 
engaging with the authorities on 
tax practices and application of 
tax laws. These committees enable 
accredited tax professionals to 
better understand tax policies and 
practices while at the same time 
provide the platform for authorities to 
appreciate issues on the ground. The 
accredited tax professionals in the 
various committees are as shown above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

YOUNG PROFESSIONAL ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 

Members 
1.  Lim Kexin (Chairperson)
2.  Loh Yu Jun Chris  

(Deputy Chairperson)
3.  Shereen Farzana 
4.  Meryl Joan Lee Yan Ci
5.  Li Pei Wen Vivian
6.  Ling Bee Yen, Allysia
7.  Sim Tiao Hui Emily
8.  Tay Ai Li
9.  Kelvin Teo 

The inaugural Young Professionals 
Advisory Committee (YPAC) was 
established in June 2012 with a view to 
contribute to the strategy, operations 
and initiatives of ISCA from the 
perspectives of our young members 
who are 35 years and below. New 
initiatives will be rolled out to further 
reach and engage this target group. 

INVESTIGATION AND  
DISCIPLINARY PANEL

In 2013, the Council appointed 
an Investigation and Disciplinary 
Panel comprising Members and Lay 
Persons for the purpose of enabling 
the constitution of an Investigation 
Committee, a Disciplinary Committee 
or an Appeal Committee, the members 
of which are drawn from this Panel. 

INVESTIGATION COMMITTEE

An Investigation Committee (IC), 
comprising three members and a lay 
person, is appointed on a case-to-case 
basis to look into a complaint against an 
ISCA member and determine if there 
is a prima facie case for the complaint 
to be referred to the Disciplinary 
Committee (DC). 
 
DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE

A Disciplinary Committee (DC), 
comprising three members and a 
lay person, is appointed to hear and 
adjudicate on the case referred to it by 
the Investigation Committee (IC) and 
makes decisions on the appropriate 
penalties and disciplinary action to be 
meted out, if necessary.
 

APPEAL COMMITTEE

An Appeal Committee, comprising three 
members and a lay person, is appointed 
when a valid notice of an appeal 
against the decision of the Disciplinary 
Committee is received. The Appeal 
Committee may affirm, vary or rescind 
the order of the Disciplinary Committee 
and may substitute for any order of 
the Discipline Committee any other 
order or orders;  or may if the Appeal 
Committee considers it appropriate, 
order that the complaint be heard afresh 
by a differently constituted Disciplinary 
Committee. 
 
During the year, the following 
members from the Investigation and 
Disciplinary Panel were appointed to 
either an Investigation Committee or a 
Disciplinary Committee to investigate 
a complaint or to formally hear a 
complaint respectively. 

Members
1.  Bill Bowman
2.  Foong Daw Ching
3.  Goh Kia Hong
4.  Michael Heng Yeow Meng
5.  Khoo Ho Tong
6.  Leow Quek Shiong
7.  Liew Geok Bee, Lisa
8.  Lim Yeong Seng
9.  Nagaraj Sivaram
10.  Saw Meng Tee 
11.  Soh Gim Teik
12.  Tan Chian Khong
13.  Kelvin Tan Wee Peng

Lay Persons
1.  Ashvinkumar Kantilal (Architect)
2.  Lee Chow Soon (Lawyer)
3.  Priscilla Tan Gopalan (Lawyer)
4.  Julia Yeo (Lawyer)
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OUR OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

The Institute 
operates in a 
dynamic eco-system 
which is constantly 
changing and 
evolving
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OUR OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

As a members-based Institute, 
the sustainability of ISCA as the 
national body for accountancy, 
ultimately, depends on the support 
of its members. Members are the life 
blood of the Institute. Therefore the 
Institute must continue to rejuvenate 
and reinvent itself in order to remain 
relevant to members and stakeholders. 
Many factors can adversely affect the 
Institute’s relevance to members. Most 
of these factors are related to the 
strength of its membership.

In a dynamic environment where 
financial regulations, accounting and 
auditing practices are constantly 
evolving, the Institute risks losing its 
relevance if it does not keep abreast of 
these changes, enhance its knowledge 
of the accountancy domain and if it 
does not have an effective members 
engagement programme by which 
relevant information and knowledge 
can be transferred to members. 
When it loses its relevance, it will  
lose members.

In the same vein, a lack of expertise 
and knowledge of current issues and 
trends in international accounting, 
auditing and tax standards will affect 
the Institute’s ability to carry out its role 
as a partner to the government and 
stakeholders in transforming Singapore 
into a leading global accountancy hub. 
The Institute should be cognisant of 
the risks of not being able to keep 
up with the changes in international 

development in financial and 
accounting regulations and standards.
Members join ISCA to develop 
themselves professionally, advance 
their careers and to expand their 
network of contacts. They can do 
these by taking advantage of the 
training, accreditation and social 
networking programmes organised by 
the Institute. ISCA risks alienating its 
members and losing its relevance if it 
is unable to offer relevant professional 
development programmes that 
can meet their needs. A decrease 
in membership means having less 
resources for the Institute, further 
reducing its capacity to offer such 
programmes resulting in a viscious 
downward spiral into irrelevance.  
In addition, with a smaller membership 
base, the take up rate of itsprogrammes 
will be reduced resulting in lower 
revenue.

The effectiveness with which the 
Institute can represent the views and 
be the voice of its members depends 
to a large extent on the strength of 
its membership. A large membership 
base, representing a high proportion 
of accountants in Singapore will give 
the Institute a stronger voice when 
engaging government and stakeholders. 
A loss of membership arising from any 
of the above mentioned factors will 
adversely affect its effectiveness in 
representing the views of members and 
more members will leave the Institute 
as a result. 

Membership dues constitute the 
mainstay of the Institute’s revenue 
stream, supplemented by revenue 
from training, development and other 
revenue accretive programmes. 
The Institute faces financial and 
sustainability risks if a decreasing 
membership reduces revenue to the 
extent that resource limitation hampers 
its ability to operate efficiently and 
deliver its programmes. 

The collective expertise, capability 
and organisation efficiency of the 
staff of the Institute are critical to the 
Institute’s ability to implement the 
strategies of the Council, support 
the various committees, organise 
events and activities for members and 
deliver programmes under its centres 
of excellence. Therefore it is very 
important for the Institute to be able 
to recruit and retain talents without 
which, its ability to carry out its role as 
the national body for accountancy will 
be severely affected. In a tight labour 
market, the competition for talent is 
challenging. The Institute must have 
an exemplary human resource policy 
and practice that meets individual’s 
aspirations for fulfilment and 
development, otherwise it risks losing 
its ability to recruit and retain talents 
adversely affecting its capability to 
implement programmes that can attract 
more members to join the Institute.

Given that Singapore is 
a small economy, our 
financial regulations must 
therefore adjust to changes 
in the international markets. 
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OUR PEOPLE

OUR PEOPLE 
OUR ASSET

The Institute is committed to investing in 
our people to enable each staff to realise 
their potential.
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OUR PEOPLE

More than just a cliché, our people 
are truly our asset. Unlike the assets 
in a balance sheet, our people are the 
life blood of the Institute. We seek to 
attract talents with the right skill sets, 
values and attitude that align with the 
Institute’s culture. The Institute’s human 
resource practices are geared towards 
nurturing and upholding a committed, 
motivated and happy workforce.  
We believe we have the best people  
to provide the best services to  
our members.

The Institute is committed to investing 
in our people to enable each staff to 
realise their potential.

The Institute is guided by the principle 
that every individual has the right to 
aspire for employment opportunity 
by which they can provide for their 
families, develop their potential and 
lead a fulfilling life. 

TALENT DEVELOPMENT

During the year, the Institute rolled 
out the training management system 
Investing in People (iiP) so that more 
accurate training needs analysis 
can be done to better identify the 
training gaps and also introduce more 
appropriate training courses to staff. In 
2013, the combined staff of the Institute  
attended a total of 1,797 hours of 
training and development.

STAFF ENGAGEMENT

Many activities and events were 
organised in 2013 where management 
shared information and rewards so 
that staff can be empowered to take 
initiative and make decisions to solve 
problems and improve service and 
performance.

CEO DIALOGUE
As part of employee engagement, a 
series of CEO dialogue sessions were 
organised to provide a platform for 
Senior Management to engage all 
levels of our staff so that they can 
better understand any ground issues.  

TOWN HALL

Regular town halls were held 
throughout 2013 to ensure  
regular communication with staff  
by management. Through these 
sessions, staff were able to have a 
better understanding of the Institute’s 
vision, strategy and the direction  
going forward, and how they can  
better contribute to realising the 
Institute’s vision.

TEAM BUILDING AND BONDING

The teambuilding retreat was held at 
Sentosa on the weekend of October. 
Many games and activities were 
organised to enhance team building 
and bonding among staff from different 
departments. The retreat provided the 
opportunity for colleagues from various 
departments to interact and know 
each other better. There was of course 
plenty of sumptuous food to satisfy  
the palettes of all the staff.

STAFF SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

Many social activities were organised 
during the year to enable staff to relax 
and rejuvenate. The social activities 
also enabled staff and management 
to interact freely and enhance 
communication and esprit de corps. 
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HAPPY HOUR
Happy Hour sessions were held 
once every two months to foster a 
more cohesive relationship between 
management and staff. It also 
reinforced the work-life balance culture 
within the Institute. Staff were invited 
to join Senior Management for an hour 
of light bites and drinks during official 
working hours, usually at an external 
venue. The relaxed environment helped 
to foster interaction between staff and 
Senior Management. The number of 
Happy Hour participants increased by  
50 per cent in 2013.

YEAR END DINNER
The Year-end Dinner was held at the 
Amara Hotel. The dinner served as a 
token of appreciation to staff for their 
hard work during the year. The theme 
of this year’s dinner was “Wild Wild 
West”. In addition to a sumptuous 
Christmas buffet, there were stage 
games and a “Sure-Win” lucky draw. 

CNY LO HEI
The annual Lo Hei Dinner was held at 
the Grand Park at City Hall to motivate 
staff to work harder in 2013. It was also 
a wonderful start to a new and exciting 
year of the Snake.

RECOGNITION
Bi-monthly, a staff is nominated for the 
Staff Recognition Award. The staff is 
rewarded for displaying the core values 
of ISCA which is Teamwork, Integrity, 
Progressive, Excellence and Empathy. 
The award and prize were given out 
at the Happy Hour event so that it 
not only achieved the purpose of staff 

recognition but also encouraged other 
staff to work towards achieving the 
award.

WORK-LIFE BALANCE 
AND EMPLOYER OF CHOICE

The Institute aspires to be an employer 
of choice in the community. It has 
initiated measures to foster better 
work-life balance. 

A Blue Sky Day initiative was 
introduced where staff could get off 
from work half an hour early every 
quarter to spend quality time with  
their families.

OUR PEOPLE

The Institute is guided by the principle that 
every individual has the right to aspire for 
employment opportunity by which they can 
provide for their families, develop their 
potential and lead a fulfilling life. 
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NOTE FROM TREASURER

Dear Members

2013 was an important year for ISCA and our members, as we celebrated the Institute’s 50th anniversary with the launch of a 
new name and brand identity.  The celebrations saw a larger scale Singapore Accountancy Convention being held in 2013 where 
conferences and forums spanned across three days. The launch of the Singapore Qualification Programme (Singapore QP) and 
the change of the Institute’s name reflecting the change of the members’ designation are significant milestones in the Institute’s 
goal of transforming itself into a professional body with global membership, outlook and standing. 

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (FY2013), the Group reported total income of $30.7 million (FY2012: $25.2 million) and total 
expenditure of $28.2 million (FY2012: $22.4 million). This represented a 21.8% growth in income and a 25.9% increase in expenses. 

Group income growth can be attributed to three main factors.  Membership subscription revenue continued to be a significant 
contribution to revenue and registered an increase of $2.0 million during the year from $5.3 million in 2012 to $7.3 million in the 
year under review. Revenue from training programmes grew from $17.4 million in the previous year to $19.3 million in FY2013, 
mainly a result of the favourable performance from the Institute’s Continuing Professional Education (CPE) division, which 
continually strives to raise the quality and offering of relevant courses to members. The increase in income from seminars and 
talks as well as the Singapore Accountancy Convention further contributed to the total increase in income. 

Direct course related expenses, such as fees paid to lecturers and costs of printing course materials increased during the year, 
in line with the improved training revenue. With the relocation of the Institute to a new premise during the year along with the 
move by SAA Global Education Centre Pte Ltd (SAA-GE) to a new larger campus in 2012, rental expenses grew by $1.4 million. 
The celebratory activities surrounding the Institute’s Golden Jubilee also accounted for the increase in expenses during the 
year. The remaining increase in expenses was a result of the reversal in the previous year of the accrual of $1.0 million for the 
Accountancy Sector Development Fund (ASDF).

Overall, at the close of FY2013, the Group saw an increase of $0.9 million in before tax surplus from FY2012, ignoring the 
effects of impairment loss adjustments and the reversal of the ASDF accrual. With the positive surplus recorded for 2013, the 
Group’s net financial position grew by 6%, with cash reserves of $16.9 million compared to $16.3 million in the previous year.  
$12.4 million of the reserves are maintained in interest bearing accounts with the remaining in current accounts to facilitate 
meeting of monthly expenditure as well as repayment of existing trade payables. 

The consolidated balance sheet of the Group reflects total assets of $59.9 million as at 31 December 2013. This represents 
approximately a $5.0 million or 9% increase from FY2012. Total liabilities increased by approximately 25% during the same period 
to $11.4 million from $9.1 million in the year before.  The increase in liabilities arose mainly from unpaid renovation costs for the 
new premises, along with increased accrued operating expenses in line with the growth of the Group’s activities.

FY2013 signified a year of changes, propelling the Group forward in meeting its vision and mission. Despite the favourable 
growth recorded in 2013, the Group is mindful that there will be uncertainties in the operating environment going forward and 
will affect future revenue streams. The Group will continue to invest in capabilities and capacities so as to be better prepared 
to implement its strategies for sustainable growth. Regardless, the Group will continue to exert the utmost efforts to protect its 
reserves and to ensure that they are appropriately utilised to achieve its mission.

Lastly, I would like to thank our Members, the Council, the Boards of Directors, and stakeholders for their active and dedicated 
support.

Ho Tuck Chuen
Treasurer
Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT BY COUNCIL

On behalf of the Council of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants (the “Institute”), we, Ernest Kan and Ho Tuck 
Chuen, being the President and Treasurer respectively, do hereby state that in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements 
of the Group and financial statements of the Institute set out on pages 71 to 101 are properly drawn up in accordance with the 
Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of 
the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2013 and of its results, changes in accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and 
cash flows of the Group and the Institute for the financial year ended on that date.

Ernest Kan    Ho Tuck Chuen
President     Treasurer

3 March 2014
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants (the “Institute”) 
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 101, which comprise the balance sheets of the Group and 
the Institute as at 31 December 2013, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in 
the accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and statements of cash flows of the Group and the Institute for the financial year 
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the 
Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as Council determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Institute are properly 
drawn up in accordance with the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to present fairly, in all material 
respects, the state of affairs of the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2013 and the results, changes in accumulated fund 
and miscellaneous fund and cash flows of the Group and the Institute for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act to be kept by the 
Institute have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.

Baker Tilly TFW LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

3 March 2014

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF THE
INSTITUTE OF SINGAPORE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Formerly known as Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore)
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      Group Institute
        2013 2012 2013 2012
       Note $ $ $ $

Secretariat     

Income       
Members’ annual and admission fees  3 7,331,365 5,325,238 7,331,365 5,325,238
Other income    5 5,313,576 4,334,211 4,482,896 2,770,408

Total income     12,644,941 9,659,449 11,814,261 8,095,646

Less expenditure

Operating expenses (excluding impairment)   (14,689,558) (10,881,064) (13,927,441) (10,248,402)
Write-back of impairment loss of 
 freehold land and building  9,10 1,723,750 1,833,085 1,723,750 1,833,085

Total expenditure    (12,965,808) (9,047,979) (12,203,691) (8,415,317)

(Deficit)/surplus before tax   (320,867) 611,470 (389,430) (319,671)

Training Division

Income       
Income from training and other courses  4 19,268,614 17,402,650 8,747,772 7,097,428
Other income    5 909,549 191,032 304,863 191,032

Total income     20,178,163 17,593,682 9,052,635 7,288,460

Less expenditure      
Operating expenses    (17,384,683) (15,484,271) (5,365,431) (4,729,971)

Surplus before tax    2,793,480 2,109,411 3,687,204 2,558,489

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont’d)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

      Group Institute
        2013 2012 2013 2012
       Note $ $ $ $

Combined     
     
Income      
Members’ annual and admission fees  3 7,331,365 5,325,238 7,331,365 5,325,238
Income from training and other courses  4 19,268,614 17,402,650 8,747,772 7,097,428
Other income    5 4,086,259 2,439,504 4,787,759 2,961,440

Total income     30,686,238 25,167,392 20,866,896 15,384,106

Less expenditure     
     
Operating expenses (excluding impairment)   (29,937,375) (24,279,596) (19,292,872) (14,978,373)
Write-back of impairment loss of 

freehold land and building  9,10 1,723,750 1,833,085 1,723,750 1,833,085

Total expenditure    (28,213,625) (22,446,511) (17,569,122) (13,145,288)

Surplus from operating activities   2,472,613 2,720,881 3,297,774 2,238,818
Share of profits of associates (net of tax)   2,134 5,916 – –

Surplus before tax    2,474,747 2,726,797 3,297,774 2,238,818
Income tax credit/(expense)  6 151,648 10,945 (58,000) 31,364

Surplus for the year   7 2,626,395 2,737,742 3,239,774 2,270,182
   
Surplus in miscellaneous fund  19 11,467 16,627 11,467 16,627

Total comprehensive income for the year   2,637,862 2,754,369 3,251,241 2,286,809

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS 
At 31 December 2013

      Group Institute
        2013 2012 2013 2012
       Note $ $ $ $

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment   9  13,298,722  22,809,392  2,764,130  759,248
Investment properties   10  25,618,379  13,206,781  35,308,798  34,019,183
Investment in subsidiaries   11  – –  300,003  300,003
Investment in associate   12  105,290  103,156  –  –
Deferred tax assets    13  310,000  194,000  136,000  194,000
Intangible assets    14  652,838 739,274 406,761  428,701
        39,985,229  37,052,603  38,915,692  35,701,135

Current assets
Inventories      16,329  23,795  16,329  23,795
Trade and other receivables   15  2,989,514  1,525,578  3,310,416 1,575,627
Cash and cash equivalents  16  16,946,036 16,349,459 8,289,215 7,605,270
        19,951,879 17,898,832  11,615,960  9,204,692

Total assets      59,937,108 54,951,435  50,531,652 44,905,827

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities   13  –  29,373  –  –
Provisions      17  528,448  175,800  352,648  –
        528,448  205,173  352,648  –

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables  18  6,589,598  3,861,418  5,404,475  2,828,511
Course fees received in advance    3,960,509  3,846,912  545,545  299,583
Subscription fees received in advance    352,618  1,151,738  350,728 1,150,718
Current tax payable     14,882  33,003  – –
        10,917,607  8,893,071 6,300,748  4,278,812

Total liabilities      11,446,055  9,098,244 6,653,396 4,278,812

Net assets       48,491,053  45,853,191 43,878,256  40,627,015

Represented by
Accumulated fund     48,408,652 45,782,257  43,795,855  40,556,081
Miscellaneous fund    19  82,401  70,934 82,401  70,934
        48,491,053  45,853,191  43,878,256  40,627,015

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND AND MISCELLANEOUS FUND
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

         Accumulated  Miscellaneous
         fund  fund  Total
         $  $  $

Group

Balance at 1 January 2012     43,044,515  54,307 43,098,822
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year    2,737,742 16,627 2,754,369
Balance at 31 December 2012     45,782,257  70,934  45,853,191
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year    2,626,395 11,467 2,637,862

Balance at 31 December 2013     48,408,652  82,401  48,491,053

Institute

Balance at 1 January 2012     38,285,899  54,307  38,340,206
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year    2,270,182  16,627 2,286,809
Balance at 31 December 2012     40,556,081  70,934  40,627,015
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year    3,239,774 11,467 3,251,241

Balance at 31 December 2013     43,795,855  82,401  43,878,256

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

      Group Institute
        2013 2012 2013 2012
        $ $ $ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus before tax     2,474,747  2,726,797  3,297,774  2,238,818

Adjustments for:
Depreciation, write-back of impairment loss
 and amortisation of property, plant and equipment,
 investment properties and intangible assets   (376,554) (627,385) (834,487) (1,017,688)
Finance cost      2,204  –  2,204  –
Gain on strike-off of an associate    –  (1,815)  –  –
Interest income      (51,122)  (33,644)  (36,902)  (23,744)
Property, plant and equipment written off    208,594 95,896  126,274  95,896
Share of profits of associates    (2,134)  (5,916)  –  –

Operating surplus before working capital changes    2,255,735 2,153,933  2,554,863  1,293,282

Inventories      7,466  (23,795)  7,466  (23,795)
Receivables      (1,448,362)  (213,834)  (1,728,376)  213,225
Payables       2,728,180  (907,773)  2,575,964 (750,358)
Course fees received in advance    113,597 40,111  245,962  49,242
Subscription fees received in advance    (799,120)  201,615  (799,990)  323,195
Miscellaneous fund     11,467  16,627 11,467  16,627

Cash generated from operations    2,868,963  1,266,884 2,867,356 1,121,418
Income tax paid      (20,346)  (111,394) –  (20,636)
Income tax refunded     8,500  –  –  –

Net cash from operating activities    2,857,117  1,155,490  2,867,356  1,100,782

Cash flows from investing activities
Fixed deposit pledged     (12)  (53)  –  –
Interest received     35,548  35,361 30,489  20,796
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment     26,830 – – –
Purchase of property, plant and equipment    (2,225,298)  (1,559,258)  (2,133,505)  (610,703)
Purchase of computer software   (97,620)  (373,510)  (80,395)  (338,685)

Net cash used in investing activities    (2,260,552)  (1,897,460)  (2,183,411)  (928,592)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents     596,565 (741,970) 683,945 172,190

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year    16,334,339  17,076,309  7,605,270  7,433,080

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
(Note 16)     16,930,904 16,334,339 8,289,215 7,605,270

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1  Corporate information

The Institute (UEN No. T04SS0109E) is the national organisation of the accountancy profession in Singapore.
It was established in June 1963 as the Singapore Society of Accountants (“SSA”) under the SSA Ordinance 1963, then 
reconstituted and renamed the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (“ICPAS”) on 11 February 1989 under 
the Accountants Act 1987. As of 1 April 2004, ICPAS is reconstituted as a society under the Societies Act. The restructuring 
is primarily a change of form for the Institute as ICPAS continues to be the national body for the accountancy profession in 
Singapore and its functions remain unchanged. During the financial year, ICPAS was renamed as the Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants (“ISCA”). The registered office of the Institute is located at 60 Cecil Street, Singapore 049709.

The principal activities of the Institute are those of administering the Institute’s membership, catering for the training and 
professional development of its members. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 11.

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Institute and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the Group’s 
interests in associates.

2  Significant accounting policies

  a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Societies Act and Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”). 

The financial statements, which are presented in Singapore dollars (“$”), have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Institute and are consistent with those 
used in the previous financial year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of income or expenditure during the financial year. Although these 
estimates are based on the Council’s best knowledge of current events and actions and historical experiences and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results may ultimately differ 
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions 
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2(r).

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013
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2  Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

  a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)

In the current financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised FRS and Interpretations of  
FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current financial year. The adoption of these 
new/revised FRS and INT FRS did not have any material effect on the financial statements, except as follows:

FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement

FRS 113 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair value measurements, 
when such measurements are required or permitted by other FRSs. In particular, it provides a consistent definition 
of fair value as the price at which an orderly transaction to sell an asset or to transfer a liability would take place 
between market participants at the measurement date. It also replaces and expands the disclosure requirements 
about fair value measurements in other FRSs.

From 1 January 2013, in accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 113, the Group has applied the new fair 
value measurement guidance prospectively, and has not provided any comparative information for new disclosures. 
Notwithstanding the above, the change had no significant impact on the measurements of the Group’s assets and 
liabilities. The additional disclosures necessary as a result of the adoption of this standard has been included in the 
financial statements.

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that have been issued at the balance sheet date 
but are not yet effective for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 have not been applied in preparing these 
financial statements. None of these are expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements 
of the Group and financial statements of the Institute.

  b) Consolidation

   Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities. 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at the 
balance sheet date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting date as the 
parent entity. Consistent accounting policies are applied for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Intragroup balances and transactions, including income, expenditure and dividends, are eliminated in full. Profits and 
losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and 
equipment, are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and 
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred for the 
acquisition comprises the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued 
by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement 
and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as 
expenditure as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013
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2  Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

  b) Consolidation (cont’d)

   Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over their financial 
and operating policies. The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method.  
The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss of the associates from the date 
that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the Group’s share of 
losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) 
is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an 
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

Accounting for subsidiaries and associates by the Institute

In the Institute’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost less 
impairment losses.

  c) Functional and foreign currencies

Functional currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency that best reflects the 
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Institute and its subsidiaries (“the 
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars (“$”), which is the 
functional currency of the Institute and its subsidiaries.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate in effect at 
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet 
date are translated into the functional currency at the rates ruling at that date. All exchange differences are taken to 
income or expenditure.

  d) Inventories

Inventories, comprising commemorative gold coins, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is 
calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

  e) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and costs of bringing the 
asset to working condition for its intended use. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of 
the cost of asset if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration costs is incurred as a consequence of 
acquiring or using the asset.  Expenditure for additions, improvements and renewals are capitalised and expenditure 
for maintenance and repairs are charged to expenditure. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day 
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in income or expenditure as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in income or 
expenditure in the year the asset is derecognised.
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

78

TRANSFORMING FOR TOMORROW: CHAMPIONING EXCELLENCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



2  Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

  e) Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated on the  
straight-line basis to write off the cost less residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building  50 years
Furniture and office equipment 4 to 10 years
Computers  3 to 4 years
Renovation  3 to 12 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial 
year-end. The effects of any revision are recognised in income or expenditure when the changes arise.

  f) Investment properties

Investment properties, comprise freehold land and buildings of the Group and the Institute, that are leased out to 
earn rental. Investment properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to 
allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful life of 50 years. 

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. When transfer is made 
between investment property and owner-occupied property, its carrying amount (cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment) at the date of transfer becomes its carrying amount for subsequent accounting.

On disposal of investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is 
recognised in income or expenditure.

  g) Intangible assets

Acquired intellectual property is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the intellectual property over their 
estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation 
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the computer software over their estimated useful 
lives of 5 years.

  h) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised in expenditure if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds 
its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that 
largely are independent from other assets and groups.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value 
in use.  In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset or cash-generating unit.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss 
has been recognised.  Reversal of impairment loss is recorded in income or expenditure. After such a reversal, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual 
value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

79

TRANSFORMING FOR TOMORROW: CHAMPIONING EXCELLENCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



2  Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

  i) Financial assets

i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets according to the purpose for which the assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this 
designation at every reporting date. The Group’s only financial assets are loans and receivables.

 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except those maturing later than 12 months 
after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are presented as 
“trade and other receivables” (excluding prepayments) and “cash and cash equivalents” on the balance sheet.

ii) Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date – the date on which the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows 
from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership. On disposal of a financial asset, the difference between the net sale proceeds 
and its carrying amount is recognised in income or expenditure. Any amount in the fair value reserve relating 
to that asset is also transferred to income or expenditure.

iii) Initial measurement

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

iv) Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment.

Interest income on financial assets is recognised separately as income.

v) Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired.

Loans and receivables

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is 
impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment loss recognised in income 
or expenditure. The impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Subsequent recoveries 
of amounts previously written off are recognised against the same line item in income or expenditure.

If in subsequent periods, the impairment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related objectively to 
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed through income or expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 
its amortised cost at the reversed date.
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2  Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

  j) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when, 
and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial 
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in income or expenditure when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through 
the amortisation process. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expired.

  k) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a result of a 
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of time value of money is 
material, the amount of the provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
obligation.

The Group recognises the estimated costs of dismantlement, removal or restoration of items of property, plant and 
equipment arising from the acquisition or use of assets (Note 2(e)). This provision is estimated based on the best 
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into consideration time value.

 
  l) Operating leases

Lessee

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are taken 
to income or expenditure on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the 
lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expenditure in the period in which termination takes place.

Lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as 
operating leases. Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

  m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value and excludes pledge deposits.

  n) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or recoverable for the rendering of services, net of 
goods and services tax, discount and after eliminating revenue within the Group. Revenue is recognised to the extent 
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Members’ annual and admission fees are recognised when due.
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2  Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

  n) Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Course fees (from continuing professional education and training) are recognised when the services are rendered.

Administrative fee income from the administration of Singapore Qualification Programme (“SQP”) is recognised 
net of expenditure incurred. The net amount of the income recognised is derived based on a pre-determined fixed 
percentage of the pre-approved expenditure incurred for the SQP.

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues based on effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Sundry income, includes sale of technical materials, which are recognised when the goods sold are delivered.

  o) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is 
recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheet and is amortised to income or expenditure over the 
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

When the grant relates to an expenditure item, it is recognised in income or expenditure over the period necessary 
to match them on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

  
  p) Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

As required by law, the Group makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) 
Scheme which is a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to CPF are recognised as expenditure in the 
period in which the related service is performed.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. The estimated liability for 
leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

 
  q) Income tax

Income tax for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is recognised in income or 
expenditure except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised 
in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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2  Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

  q) Income tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, providing for all temporary differences at the balance sheet 
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred 
tax is not recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when 
they reverse, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance  
sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

  r) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year, are discussed below.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The cost of property, plant and equipment and investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 
their respective useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment and 
investment properties to be within 3 to 50 years. The estimation of the useful lives and residual amount involves 
assumptions concerning the future and estimations of the assets common life expectancies and expected level of 
usage. Any changes in the expected useful lives of these assets would affect the net carrying amount of property, plant 
and equipment and investment properties, and the depreciation charge for the financial year.

The carrying amount of the Group’s and Institute’s property, plant and equipment and investment properties as at 31 
December 2013 and the annual depreciation charge for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 are disclosed in 
Notes 9 and 10. 

3  Members’ annual and admission fees

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Members’ annual fees   6,593,665 4,803,538 6,593,665 4,803,538
Members’ admission fees   737,700 521,700 737,700 521,700
      7,331,365 5,325,238 7,331,365 5,325,238
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4  Income from training and other courses

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Income from Continuing Professional Education   3,926,187 3,001,743 3,926,187 3,001,743
Income from other training courses   15,342,427 14,400,907 4,821,585 4,095,685
      19,268,614 17,402,650 8,747,772 7,097,428

5  Other income

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Secretariat     
Government grants   32,797 19,800 27,797 3,718
Registration and subscription fees   770,865 992,271 – –
Interest income from bank 

deposits and bank balances   44,885 33,644 36,902 23,744
Management fees   959,259 791,949 959,259 791,949
Practice Monitoring income and 

review fees    224,530 286,731 224,530 286,731
Seminar and talk fees   1,231,757 239,514 1,204,585 163,604
Rental income    1,699,153 1,281,635 1,699,153 1,117,279
Sundry income    350,330 688,667 330,670 383,383
      5,313,576 4,334,211 4,482,896 2,770,408

Training Division     
Government grants   65,390 – – –
Interest income from bank 

deposits and bank balances   6,237 – – –
Seminar and talk fees   80,028 92,464 78,428 92,464
Development fee    61,000 – 61,000 –
Rental income    226,581 1,170 – 1,170
SQP net administrative fee   137,908 – 137,908 –
Sundry income    332,405 97,398 27,527 97,398
      909,549 191,032 304,863 191,032

Sub-total     6,223,125 4,525,243 4,787,759 2,961,440
Elimination     (2,136,866) (2,085,739) – –

Combined     4,086,259 2,439,504 4,787,759 2,961,440

The SQP net administrative fee of the Training Division during the current financial year is derived as a fixed percentage of 
the expenditure incurred by the Group and Institute, which includes the following:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Staff costs     (713,068) – (713,068) –
Contributions to CPF   (92,481) – (92,481) –
Rental expenses    (95,366) – (95,366) –
Depreciation of property, plant equipment (Note 9)  (10,480) – (10,480) –
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6  Income tax (credit)/expense

Income tax (credit)/expense attributable to results is made up of:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Current income tax   14,847 30,983 – –
Deferred tax    (162,000) (112,627) – (119,000)
      (147,153) (81,644) – (119,000)

(Over)/under provision of 
income tax in prior years   (21,122) 3,699 – 20,636

Over recognition of deferred 
tax assets in prior years   16,627 67,000 58,000 67,000

      (151,648) (10,945) 58,000 (31,364)

The income tax (credit)/expense on the results of the financial year varies from the amount of income tax determined by 
applying the Singapore statutory rate of income tax to surplus before tax due to the following factors:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Surplus before tax   2,474,747 2,726,797 3,297,774 2,238,818

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17%   420,707 463,555 560,622 380,599
Singapore statutory stepped

income exemption   (22,145) (31,994) – –
Income not subject to tax   (309,729) (484,358) (297,763) (481,624)
Expenses not deductible for tax 

purposes    153,374 108,766 81,772 79,994
Effect of tax incentive and tax 

rebate*     (390,678) (132,963) (346,321) (97,734)
Utilisation of deferred tax assets 

previously not recognised   (1,207) (4,380) – –
(Over)/under provision of 

income tax in prior years   (21,122) 3,699 – 20,636
Over recognition of deferred 

tax assets in prior years   16,627 67,000 58,000 67,000
Others     2,525 (270) 1,690 (235)
      (151,648) (10,945) 58,000 (31,364)
   
* Tax incentive for the Group and the Institute mainly arose from the Productivity and Innovation Credit scheme.
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7  Surplus for the year

  This is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment (Note 9)   775,959 991,670 342,313 551,595

Depreciation of investment 
properties (Note 10)   376,701 88,214 434,135 219,904

Write-back of impairment loss 
of freehold land and 
building (Notes 9 and 10)   (1,723,750) (1,833,085) (1,723,750) (1,833,085)

Amortisation of intangible assets 
(Note 14)    184,056 125,816 102,335 43,898

Bad debts written off   1,394 194,955 1,394 155,926
Direct costs of providing training 

and other courses   5,840,823 4,635,753 2,154,471 1,536,500
Finance cost    2,204 – 2,204 –
Gain on strike-off of an 

associate    – 1,815 – –
Property, plant and equipment 

written off    208,594 95,896 126,274 95,896
Rental expenses    2,808,226 1,405,644 1,605,803 902,256
Write-back of accrual for 

contribution to the Accountancy
Sector Development Fund   – (1,000,000) – (1,000,000)

Staff costs (Note 8)   11,950,181 11,614,355 8,832,502 8,213,308

8  Staff costs

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Salaries and bonuses   10,562,025 10,175,122 7,824,220 7,223,596
Contributions to CPF   1,196,807 1,199,550 861,160 832,654
Other employee benefit expenses   191,349 239,683 147,122 157,058
      11,950,181 11,614,355 8,832,502 8,213,308
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9  Property, plant and equipment

Group

      Furniture   
    Freehold Freehold and office  
    land buildings equipment Computers Renovation Total
    $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost 
Balance at 1 January 2012 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,786,414 1,863,514 1,193,655 46,726,347
Additions   – – 901,842 273,589 559,627 1,735,058
Reclassified to investment 

properties (Note 10) – (15,122,262) – – – (15,122,262)
Written off   – – (633,929) (33,266) (270,565) (937,760)

Balance at 31 December 2012 20,176,000 6,584,502 2,054,327 2,103,837 1,482,717 32,401,383
Additions   – – 1,241,654 246,369 1,087,719 2,575,742
Reclassified to investment

properties (Note 10) (11,376,679) (3,712,816) – – – (15,089,495)
Disposals/written off – – (1,056,042) (407,954) (960,111) (2,424,107)

Balance at 31 December 2013 8,799,321 2,871,686 2,239,939 1,942,252 1,610,325 17,463,523

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment      

Balance at 1 January 2012 5,805,835 3,456,695 1,363,771 1,535,701 940,535 13,102,537
Depreciation charge for the year  – 345,922 233,214 238,180 174,354 991,670
Reclassified to investment 

properties (Note 10) – (1,827,267) – – – (1,827,267)
Written off   – – (554,771) (33,266) (253,827) (841,864)
Write-back of impairment loss (1,833,085) – – – – (1,833,085)

Balance at  31 December 2012 3,972,750 1,975,350 1,042,214 1,740,615 861,062 9,591,991
Depreciation charge for the year  – 57,434 254,697 226,775 247,533 786,439
Reclassified to investment 

properties (Note 10) (2,240,122) (1,113,845) – – – (3,353,967)
Disposals/written off – – (898,173) (407,954) (882,556) (2,188,683)
Write-back of impairment loss  (670,979) – – – – (670,979)

Balance at 31 December 2013 1,061,649 918,939 398,738 1,559,436 226,039 4,164,801

Carrying amount      
Balance at 31 December 2012 16,203,250 4,609,152 1,012,113 363,222 621,655 22,809,392

Balance at 31 December 2013 7,737,672 1,952,747 1,841,201 382,816 1,384,286 13,298,722
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9  Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

(a) In the current financial year, the CPA House is classified as an investment property in the Institute’s balance sheet as 
it is fully leased out. However in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet, the portion that is occupied by its wholly-
owned subsidiary, SAA Global Education Centre Pte Ltd, is classified as property, plant and equipment.

In the previous financial year, the CPA House was classified as an investment property in the Institute’s balance sheet 
as it is substantially leased out to its wholly-owned subsidiary, SAA Global Education Centre Pte Ltd. However, in the 
Group’s consolidated balance sheet, this was classified as property, plant and equipment.

(b) At the current balance sheet date, the market value of certain units of the CPA House (Note (e) below) classified as 
property, plant and equipment is valued at $11,090,000. The valuation is determined based on the properties’ highest 
and best use by an external and independent professional valuer, Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd using the 
Direct Sale Comparison Approach at the balance sheet date. Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity 
are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size, tenure, location, condition and prevailing market 
condition (Level 3 fair value hierarchy).

As the recoverable amount of these CPA House units in the current financial year is higher than its carrying amount, 
a write-back of impairment loss of $670,979 is recognised by the Group. 

At the previous balance sheet date, the market value of the property, CPA House (consisting 5 floors) was valued 
at $23,850,000. The valuation was determined by independent professional valuer based on a desktop update of 
valuation using the Market Data Approach at the balance sheet date. As the recoverable amount of the CPA House 
in the previous financial year was higher than its carrying amount, a write-back of impairment loss of $1,833,085 was 
recognised by the Group.

(c) Depreciation charge is taken up as follows:

       2013 2012
       $ $

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income   
- Other income – SQP net administrative fee (Note 5)    10,480 –
- Operating expenses (Note 7)     775,959 991,670
       786,439 991,670

(d) Additions to renovation during the year include provision for dismantlement, removal and restoration costs of 
$350,444 (2012: $175,800). The cash outflow on acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to $2,225,298 
(2012: $1,559,258).

(e) In accordance with the Constitution of the Institute, the freehold land and building are held by Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants Pte Ltd in trust for the Institute.

Location      Area Tenure
       (Sq metre) 

i) CPA House
 20 Aljunied Road
 Singapore 389805
 Consisting of 2 floors
 (Units #04-01, #04-02, #05-01, #05-02)    1,212 Freehold
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9  Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Institute

      Furniture
     Freehold and office
     buildings equipment Computers Renovation Total
     $ $ $ $ $

Cost      
Balance at 1 January 2012  15,122,262 1,180,501 1,380,743 667,497 18,351,003
Additions    – 266,761 211,639 132,303 610,703
Reclassified to investment

properties (Note 10)  (15,122,262) – – – (15,122,262)
Written off    – (633,413) (33,266) (270,565) (937,244)

Balance at 31 December 2012  – 813,849 1,559,116 529,235 2,902,200
Additions    – 1,205,326 212,613 1,066,010 2,483,949
Written off    – (487,510) (61,534) (433,954) (982,998)

Balance at 31 December 2013  – 1,531,665 1,710,195 1,161,291 4,403,151

Accumulated depreciation      
Balance at 1 January 2012  1,613,035 921,764 1,118,732 606,441 4,259,972
Depreciation charge for the year   214,232 110,967 193,576 32,820 551,595
Reclassified to investment

properties (Note 10)  (1,827,267) – – – (1,827,267)
Written off    – (554,256) (33,266) (253,826) (841,348)

Balance at 31 December 2012  – 478,475 1,279,042 385,435 2,142,952
Depreciation charge for the year   – 103,917 180,951 67,925 352,793
Written off    – (403,019) (61,534) (392,171) (856,724)

Balance at 31 December 2013  – 179,373 1,398,459 61,189 1,639,021

Carrying amount      
Balance at 31 December 2012  – 335,374 280,074 143,800 759,248

Balance at 31 December 2013  – 1,352,292 311,736 1,100,102 2,764,130

(aa) Depreciation charge is taken up as follows:

        2013 2012
        $ $

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income   
- Other income – SQP net administrative fee (Note 5)    10,480 –
- Operating expenses (Note 7)     342,313 551,595

        352,793 551,595

(bb) Additions to renovation during the year include provision for dismantlement, removal and restoration costs of $350,444 
(2012: $Nil). The cash outflow on acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to $2,133,505 (2012: $610,703).
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10  Investment properties

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Cost     
At beginning of year   15,122,262 – 41,882,764 26,760,502
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment (Note 9)  15,089,495 15,122,262 – 15,122,262

At end of year    30,211,757 15,122,262 41,882,764 41,882,764
   
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At beginning of year   1,915,481 – 7,863,581 7,649,495
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment (Note 9)  3,353,967 1,827,267 – 1,827,267
Depreciation charge (Note 7)   376,701 88,214 434,135 219,904
Write-back of impairment loss    (1,052,771) – (1,723,750) (1,833,085)

At end of year    4,593,378 1,915,481 6,573,966 7,863,581

Carrying amount   25,618,379 13,206,781 35,308,798 34,019,183
   
Group 

(a) In the current financial year, certain units of the CPA House are held for leasing to third parties and have been 
reclassified from property, plant and equipment to investment properties.

In the previous financial year, #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay had been reclassified from property, plant and equipment to 
investment property as it was held for leasing to third parties. 

(b) At the current balance sheet date, the market values of certain units of the CPA House (Note (c) below) classified 
as investment properties and #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay are valued at $14,910,000 and $27,000,000 respectively. The 
valuations are determined based on the properties’ highest and best use by an external and independent professional 
valuer, Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd using the Direct Sale Comparison Approach at the balance sheet 
date. Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as 
property size, tenure, location, condition and prevailing market condition (Level 3 fair value hierarchy).

As the recoverable amount of CPA House units in the current financial year is higher than its carrying amount,  
a write-back of impairment loss of $1,052,771 is recognised by the Group. 

At the previous balance sheet date, the market value of the property, #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay was valued at $26,330,000. 
The valuation was determined by independent professional valuer based on a desktop update of valuation using the 
Market Data Approach at the balance sheet date.

(c) In accordance with the Constitution of the Institute, the freehold land and buildings are held by Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants Pte Ltd in trust for the Institute.

 Location      Area Tenure
        (Sq metre) 

i) CPA House
20 Aljunied Road
Singapore 389805
Consisting of 3 floors
(Units #01-01, #01-03, #01-04, #01-05, #01-06,
#02-01, #02-02, #06-01 and #06-02)     1,567 Freehold

ii) 6 Raffles Quay
#23-00
Singapore 048580     941 Freehold
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10  Investment properties (cont’d)

Institute

(aa) At the current balance sheet date, the market values of the investment properties at CPA House (consisting  
5 floors) and #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay are valued at $26,000,000 and $27,000,000 respectively. The valuations are 
determined based on the properties’ highest and best use by an external and independent professional valuer,  
Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd using the Direct Sale Comparison Approach at the balance sheet date. Sales 
prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size, 
tenure, location, condition and prevailing market condition (Level 3 fair value hierarchy).

At the previous balance sheet date, the market values of the properties, CPA house (consisting 5 floors) and  
#23-00, 6 Raffles Quay were valued at $23,850,000 and $26,330,000 respectively. The valuations were determined 
by independent professional valuer based on a desktop update of valuation using the Market Data Approach at the 
balance sheet date.

As the recoverable amount of CPA House in the current financial year is higher than its carrying amount, a write-back 
of impairment loss of $1,723,750 (2012: $1,833,085) is recognised by the Institute.

Group and Institute 

The following amounts are recognised in income and expenditure:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Rental income    706,524 – 1,568,638 1,071,583
Direct operating expenses arising from investment 
  properties that generated rental income   (115,470) – (237,821) (332,745)
Direct operating expenses arising from investment
  properties that did not generate rental income  (37,943) (110,977) (22,974) (110,977)
Write-back of impairment loss   1,052,771 – 1,723,750 1,833,085
Depreciation charge   (376,701) (88,214) (434,135) (219,904)

11  Subsidiaries and intra-group transactions

a) Investment in subsidiaries
 

     Institute
        2013 2012
        $ $

Unquoted equity shares, at cost  
At beginning and end of year     300,003 300,003
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11  Subsidiaries and intra-group transactions (cont’d)

b) Details of subsidiaries are as follows:

       Effective interest
   Country of Principal held by the Group
Name of subsidiaries incorporation activities 2013 2012
     % %
Association of Taxation  Singapore To administer the  100 100
   Technicians (S) Limited*#     structured training
       program and to set and
         to manage the syllabus
         and examination which
         will lead to the 
         Diploma in Taxation 
    
Certified Accounting Singapore To support and advance 100 100
   Technicians (Singapore) Ltd*#     the status and interests of
       Certified Accounting
         Technicians 

Institute of Singapore Chartered    Singapore To undertake and perform 100 100
   Accountants Pte Ltd#     the office and duties of
       trustee of and for the 
         ISCA in accordance
        with the constitution of
        the ISCA
 
SAA Global Education Singapore Operating a private 100 100
   Centre Pte. Ltd.#     education centre which
       offers higher education
         programmes
 
Singapore Institute of Singapore Accreditation body for tax 100 100
   Accredited Tax      professionals 
   Professionals Limited*  
 
* There is no cost of investment as the subsidiaries are companies limited by guarantee for every member of 

the company undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of these subsidiaries in the event of its 
liquidation to an amount not exceeding $10 for each member. 

# These subsidiaries are considered to be wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Institute as the members of the 
subsidiaries are trustees of the Institute and the Council of the Institute has direct control over these subsidiaries.

c) Intra-group transactions

During the financial year, the Institute has the following significant transactions with the subsidiaries on terms agreed 
between the parties:

     Institute
        2013 2012
        $ $

CPE course fees     1,068 –
Subscription of journals     37,228 26,834
Management fee income     945,096 782,449
Rental income     976,095 1,117,279
Rental expenses     158,787 156,448
Reimbursement of expenses     4,660 2,729
Seminar fees     15,000 –
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12  Investment in associate

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Investment in associate   105,290 103,156 –* –*
 
     Group
        2013 2012
        $ $

Share of profits   
At beginning of year     103,156 95,425
Share of profits      2,134 7,731
        105,290 103,156

Details of associate are as follows:

       Effective interest
   Country of Principal held by the Group

Name of associate incorporation activities 2013 2012
     % %

Insolvency Practitioners Singapore Professional body
   Association of Singapore Limited*     for insolvency practitioners 50 50

* There is no cost of investment as the associate is company limited by guarantee whereby every member of the 
company undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of the company in the event of its liquidation to an 
amount not exceeding $10 for each member.

The summarised financial information of the associate not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by the 
Group is as follows:

        2013 2012
        $ $

Assets and liabilities   
Current assets      234,109 219,821

Current liabilities     25,530 13,508

Results   
Revenue       25,526 28,776

Profit after taxation     4,267 11,831
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12  Investment in associate (cont’d)

During the financial year, the Institute has the following transaction with an associate on the terms agreed between the 
parties:

     Group & Institute
        2013 2012
        $ $

Management fee income     14,163 9,500
Share of conference income     – 818

13  Deferred tax 

        2013 2012
        $ $

Group   
   
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises tax effect of 

temporary differences arising from:   
Accelerated tax depreciation     (179,700) (152,648)
Provisions and accruals     375,600 313,819
Unutilised tax losses     114,100 –
Others       – 3,456
        310,000 164,627

Representing:   
Non-current   
Deferred tax assets     310,000 194,000
Deferred tax liabilities     – (29,373)
        310,000 164,627

        2013 2012
        $ $

Institute   
   
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises tax effect of 

temporary differences arising from:   
Accelerated tax depreciation     (198,900) (80,238)
Provisions and accruals      334,900 273,985
Others       – 253
        136,000 194,000

Representing:   
Non-current   
Deferred tax assets     136,000 194,000
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14  Intangible assets

Group
       Intellectual Computer 
       property software Total
       $ $ $

Cost    
Balance at 1 January 2012    19,388 495,690 515,078
Additions      – 373,510 373,510

Balance at 31 December 2012    19,388 869,200 888,588
Additions      – 97,620 97,620

Balance at 31 December 2013    19,388 966,820 986,208

Accumulated amortisation    
Balance at 1 January 2012    8,617 14,881 23,498
Amortisation charge for the year (Note 7)    6,463 119,353 125,816

Balance at 31 December 2012    15,080 134,234 149,314
Amortisation charge for the year (Note 7)    4,308 179,748 184,056

Balance at 31 December 2013    19,388 313,982 333,370

Carrying amount    
Balance at 31 December 2012    4,308 734,966 739,274

Balance at 31 December 2013    – 652,838 652,838

Institute
       Intellectual Computer 
       property software Total
       $ $ $

Cost   
Balance at 1 January 2012    19,388 129,300 148,688
Additions      – 338,685 338,685

Balance at 31 December 2012    19,388 467,985 487,373
Additions      – 80,395 80,395

Balance at 31 December 2013    19,388 548,380 567,768

Accumulated amortisation   
Balance at 1 January 2012    8,617 6,157 14,774
Amortisation charge for the year (Note 7)    6,463 37,435 43,898

Balance at 31 December 2012    15,080 43,592 58,672
Amortisation charge for the year (Note 7)    4,308 98,027 102,335

Balance at 31 December 2013    19,388 141,619 161,007

Carrying amount   
Balance at 31 December 2012    4,308 424,393 428,701

Balance at 31 December 2013    – 406,761 406,761
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14  Intangible assets (cont’d)

Included in computer software of the Group and the Institute in the previous year was software-in-progress amounted  
to $244,260.

15  Trade and other receivables

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Trade receivables   1,378,600 467,605 1,352,600 444,436
Amounts due from (trade)
- subsidiaries     – – 607,977 352,683
- associate     15,154 10,165 15,154 10,165
Amount due from subsidiary (non-trade)   – – 200,000 200,000
Accrued practice review fee receivable   68,243 107,710 68,243 107,710
Deposits     1,149,307 671,540 780,017 302,450
Interest receivables   29,815 14,241 18,941 12,528
Prepayments    305,515 231,279 231,461 126,234
Others     42,880 23,038 36,023 19,421
      2,989,514 1,525,578 3,310,416 1,575,627

Amounts due from subsidiaries and associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

16  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and fixed deposits.

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Interest bearing accounts   12,441,697 9,348,005 6,826,677 5,143,696
Non-interest bearing accounts   4,504,339 7,001,454 1,462,538 2,461,574
      16,946,036 16,349,459 8,289,215 7,605,270

Less: Fixed deposit pledged   (15,132) (15,120) – –

As per statements of cash flows   16,930,904 16,334,339 8,289,215 7,605,270

Included in interest bearing accounts of the Group and Institute are fixed deposits totaling $11,263,885 (2012: $8,241,086) 
and $5,648,865 (2012: $4,036,777) respectively which are placed for varying periods of between 1 to 12 months  
(2012: 1 to 12 months) depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and the Institute and earn interest 
of 0.075% to 1.25% (2012: 0.05% to 1.25%) per annum. Fixed deposit of $15,132 (2012: $15,120) is pledged to bank for  
banking facilities.
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17  Provisions 

Provision for dismantlement, removal and restoration costs has been recognised as a consequence of lease arrangement 
entered into during the year for its office and training premises.

Movements in provisions are as follows:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $
     
At beginning of year   175,800 – – –
Provision made    352,648 175,800 352,648 –

At end of year    528,448 175,800 352,648 –

The provisions represents the present value of management’s best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits 
that will be required to reinstate leased property to its original state. The estimate has been made on the basis of quotes 
obtained from external contractors. The unexpired term of the leases range from 3 to 12 years (2012: 4 years).

18  Trade and other payables

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Trade payables     
- third parties    981,211 893,300 664,436 623,603
- related parties    – 6,000 1,878 1,105
Other payables      
- third parties    745,345 – 745,345 –
- subsidiary     – – – 1,293
Accrued operating expenses   3,833,771 2,962,118 2,963,545 2,202,510
Deposits received   222,572 – 222,572 –
Billings in advance   806,699 – 806,699 –
      6,589,598 3,861,418 5,404,475 2,828,511

Amount due to a subsidiary was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

19  Miscellaneous fund

Community Service Project Fund

The fund is made up of donations from members, money from fund-raising projects and contributions from the Institute.  
It is used for the Institute’s community service projects and is made up as follows:

     Group & Institute
        2013 2012
        $ $

At beginning of year     70,934 54,307
Add: Donations from members, representing surplus for the year   11,467 16,627
At end of year      82,401 70,934
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20  Related party transactions

(a) In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following transactions took place 
between the Group/Institute and related parties during the financial year on terms agreed by the parties concerned:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Lecturers’ fees    29,000 44,480 29,000 44,480
Professional fees   – 27,000 – 27,000
Printing and stationery expenses    43,329 17,592 10,818 4,630

Related parties comprise firms and companies which are controlled or significantly influenced by certain Council 
Members of the Institute.

(b) Key management personnel compensation comprise:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Short-term employee benefits   1,866,189 1,454,518 1,429,797 1,122,974
Contributions to CPF   97,973 64,778 53,522 42,861
     1,964,162 1,519,296 1,483,319 1,165,835

21  Operating lease commitments

The Group and the Institute lease properties and office equipment from non-related parties under non-cancellable operating 
lease agreements. These leases have an average tenure of between one to six years, varying terms, escalation clauses and 
renewal options. 

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at balance sheet date are as follows:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Within one year    4,172,076 2,339,482 2,281,270 948,098
After one year but within five years   11,263,448 4,499,142 8,483,335 1,044,351
More than five years   1,552,376 – 1,552,376 –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

98

TRANSFORMING FOR TOMORROW: CHAMPIONING EXCELLENCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



22  Financial instruments

  a) Categories of financial instruments
 

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Financial assets     
Loans and receivables (including cash and 

cash equivalents)   19,630,035 17,643,758 11,368,170 9,054,663

Financial liabilities     
Amortised cost   6,631,839 3,598,993 5,366,201 2,510,901

  b) Financial risk management

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial management are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign 
currency risk. The Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing fixed deposits.  
The sensitivity analysis for changes in interest rate is not disclosed as the effect on income or expenditure is considered 
not significant.

Credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle its financial and 
contractual obligations to the Group, as and when they fall due. The Group manages this risk by monitoring credit 
periods and limiting the aggregate financial exposure to any individual counterparty.

The Group places its cash and fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions which are regulated.

The credit risk is as follows:

i) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks with high credit-ratings 
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are 
substantially companies and individuals with a good collection track record with the Group.

ii) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for trade receivables.

 The age analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is as follows:

    Group Institute
      2013 2012 2013 2012
      $ $ $ $

Past due 0 to 3 months   1,113,077 359,699 1,101,283 358,370
Past due 3 to 6 months   106,932 60,363 106,749 60,363
Past due over 6 months   158,591 47,543 144,568 25,703
    1,378,600 467,605 1,352,600 444,436
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22  Financial instruments (cont’d)

  b) Financial risk management (cont’d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed 
adequate by the Management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group targets for available funds in the form of surplus liquidity and aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by 
keeping committed and uncommitted credit lines available.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Institute’s non-derivative financial liabilities at 
the balance sheet date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

   <--------------------------2013--------------------------> <--------------------------2012-------------------------->
   1 year 1 to 5 Over 5  1 year 1 to 5 Over 5 
   or less year year Total or less year year Total
   $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Group 
Trade and 

other payables 6,103,391 – – 6,103,391 3,423,193 – – 3,423,193
Provisions  – 227,076 350,160 577,236 – 175,800 – 175,800

Institute        
Trade and

 other payables 5,013,553 – – 5,013,553 2,510,901 – – 2,510,901
Provisions  – 51,276 350,160 401,436 – – – –

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency risk results mainly from cash flows and transactions denominated in foreign currencies. 
It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative forward foreign exchange contracts for hedging and speculative 
purposes.

The Group has no significant financial assets and liabilities held in foreign currency.

23  Fair value of assets and liabilities

  (a) Fair value hierarchy

The tables below analyse the fair value measurements by the levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to 
the valuation techniques. The different levels are defined as follows:

a) Level 1 –  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
b) Level 2 –  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly or indirectly (ie derived from prices); and
c) Level 3 –  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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23  Fair value of assets and liabilities (cont’d)

  (b) Assets and liabilities not carried at fair value but which fair values are disclosed

     Fair value measurement
    Carrying at balance sheet date
      amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
      $ $ $ $

2013    
Group    
Investment properties   25,618,379 – – 41,910,000

Institute    
Investment properties   35,308,798 – – 53,000,000

The above does not include financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts are measured on the 
amortised cost basis. The carrying amounts of these financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their 
fair values. 

  (c) Determination of fair values

   Investment properties

   The basis of determining fair values for disclosure at balance sheet date is disclosed in Note 10.

24  Fund management

The Institute’s objectives when managing its funds are to safeguard its ability to maintain adequate working capital to 
continue as going concern, to promote its objective to lead, develop and support accountancy professionals in Singapore 
and uphold the public interest and these objectives remain unchanged from previous year.

25  Authorisation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Institute for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2013 were authorised for issue by the Council on 3 March 2014.
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Notice is hereby given that in accordance with Article 78 of the Constitution of the Institute, the Annual General Meeting 
2013/2014 of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants will be held on Saturday, 19 April 2014 at 2.00 pm, at  
Marina Mandarin, Marina Mandarin Ballroom, Level 1, 6 Raffles Boulevard, Marina Square, Singapore 039594.

AGENDA

1  President’s address.

2  To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting 2012/2013 of Members held on 27 April 2013.

3  To receive the Report of the Council for the year 2013/2014 and Accounts of the Institute for the year ended  
31 December 2013.

4  To elect eight members to the Council in accordance with Article 33 comprising:

  (a) At least three CAs (Singapore) who are Public Accountants to hold office for a term of two years;

  (b)  At least three CAs (Singapore) who are not Public Accountants to hold office for a term of two years.

The following members of the Council shall retire in accordance with the provisions of Articles 49 to 51 of the Constitution:

Chartered Accountants of Singapore who are  
Public Accountants

Frankie Chia Soo Hien
Michael Chin Sek Peng
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong
Yeoh Oon Jin

Chartered Accountants of Singapore who are not  
Public Accountants

Genevieve Chua Kwee Huay
Ramasamy Dhinakaran
Vincent Lim Boon Seng
Jeann Low Ngiap Jong

Nominations have been received for the following:
 

Chartered Accountants of Singapore who are Public 
Accountants

Nominated by

Frankie Chia Soo Hien

Leong Hon Mun Peter
Lew Wan Ming

Khoo Gaik Suan
William Ng Wee Liang

Ng Kian Hui

Michael Chin Sek Peng

Sajjad Akhtar
Lee Eng Kian

Lim Geok Peng
Pong Siew Inn
Sia Boon Tiong

Balasubramaniam Janamanchi

Rangarajan Narayanamohan
Lee Chong Hua

G. Arull
Terence Ng Chi Hou

Phang Lay Koon
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Sim Hwee Cher

Soh Kok Leong
Kok Moi Lre

Magdelene Chua Wei Zhen
Maurice Loh Seow Wee

Peter Low Eng Huat

Tam Chee Chong

Philip Yuen Ewe Jin
Keoy Soo Earn

Rajagopalan Seshadri
Sim Guan Seng
Sum Yee Loong

Chartered Accountants of Singapore who are not  
Public Accountants

Nominated by

Ramasamy Dhinakaran

Seah Gek Choo
Cheng Weng Hong

Bowman William Sefton
Khoo Ho Tong
Tan Boen Eng

Gerard Ee Hock Kim

Tay Woon Teck
Chio Kian Huat

Chee Yoh Chuang
Abuthahir Abdul Gafoor

Quek Li Huan

Vincent Lim Boon Seng

Pang Seng Poh
Yoong Ee Chuan

Tan Sze Ying
Cheam Heng Teng
Chua Chin Meng

Anthony Mallek

Chng Lay Chew
Hui Choon Kit
Quek See Tiat
Chia Nam Toon

Choo Eng Chuan

5.  To re-appoint Messrs Baker Tilly TFW LLP as Auditors of the Institute for the financial year ending 31 December 2014 and to 
authorise the Council to fix their remuneration.

6.  To consider, and if thought fit, pass by special resolution that the Constitution of the Institute be amended by including an 
additional Article 115 as follows:

“The two members of the Council appointed pursuant to Article 34 and due to retire at the AGM to be held in 2014 in 
accordance with Article 114, shall be exempted from the provisions of Article 50 and may, if re-appointed, serve an additional 
consecutive term of 2 years. Such members shall retire at the AGM to be held in 2016, at which time the provisions of this 
Article 115 shall cease to apply.”
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Explanatory Note to Agenda Item 6:

Article 34 of the Constitution provides for the appointment of persons whom the Council in its discretion considers would be 
able to contribute and add value to the Institute due to their positions or particular expertise and experience. 

The category of “Appointed Council Members” was carried forward from past practice where the dean of the local university 
was appointed to the Council as traditionally, the bulk of the Institute’s members are graduates from the local university.

Professor Pang Yang Hoong, Dean of the School of Accountancy, Singapore Management University (SMU), and Professor Gillian 
Yeo Hian Heng, Associate Dean of the Nanyang Business School, Nanyang Technological University (NTU), were appointed by 
the Council under Article 34 of the Constitution. 

As part of the Institute’s initiative to improve and enhance the governance of the Institute, certain amendments were made to 
the Constitution in 2012 to limit the number of consecutive terms Council members may hold office. As such, Professor Pang and 
Professor Yeo will be required to retire from their office as members of the Council pursuant to Article 114 of the Constitution 
as they have served the maximum number of consecutive terms allowed under the Constitution.

In 2013, the Government launched the Singapore Qualification Programme (Singapore QP) and appointed the Institute as the 
administrator of the Singapore QP. With the launch of the Singapore QP, the Council believes that the experience, expertise 
and continued support of prominent academics, Professor Pang and Professor Yeo will be necessary over the next two years 
during this transitional phase.

The proposed amendment to the Constitution is meant to allow the re-appointment of Professor Pang and Professor Yeo to 
the Council for an additional term of two years, to allow the Council and the Institute to draw on their expertise, wealth of 
knowledge and support during this transitional phase in the light of the recent launch of the Singapore QP.

By order of the Council

JANET TAN
Secretary
25 March 2014
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CPAs Singapore who are not Public Accountants Nominated by
Chan Hon Chew Yee Chen Fah

Quek Bin Hwee
Soh Kok Leong
Sim Hwee Cher
Ong Chao Choon

Ho Tuck Chuen Soo Chee Kong
Leong Wai Kin
Tan Chin Huat
Chee Wan Chin
Chee Lee Fong

Ho Yew Kee Chng Chee Kiong
Ruth Tan Seow Kuan
Alfred Loh Lye Chye
Keung Ching Tung
Kwek Ai Lin Angeline

Lee Wai Fai Chan Yoke Meng
Yeo Lee Kian
Lim Hwee Hwee
Tan Chin Poh
Khoo Hui Joo

5 To re-appoint Messrs Baker Tilly TFW LLP as Auditors of the Institute for the financial year ending  
31 December 2013 and to authorise the Council to fix their remuneration. 

6 To consider, and if thought fit, pass by special resolution that:

(a) the name of the Institute be changed to “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants” and the 
name “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants” be substituted for “Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants of Singapore” in so far as it is necessary for preserving the effect of the Constitution or any 
written rules or documents whenever the latter name appears as such (the “Change of Name”); and

(b) the Constitution of the Institute be amended in the manner and to the extent as set out in the Appendix 
enclosed with this Notice (the “Amendment”),

 and that the Change of Name and the Amendment shall take effect from such date as the Council shall 
determine.

By order of the Council

JANET TAN
Secretary
2 April 2013
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Date:  27 April 2013
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Marina Mandarin Ballroom

Total number of members present
CPAs Singapore:   532
Associates:      44

Total:     576

Chairman and President: Dr Ernest Kan
Secretary:   Ms Janet Tan

1.   NOTICE OF MEETING 

The notice of meeting, having been circulated to members before the meeting, was taken as read.

2.   PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS

The Chairman welcomed all members present at the Institute’s Annual General Meeting, which saw a record turnout 
of 576 members. The Chairman proceeded to give an overview of the Institute’s key achievements since the last AGM, 
and updated members on the progress achieved on the ICPAS Strategic Plan 2013-2015, the blueprint for the Institute’s 
continued transformation.  

He gave a recapitulation of the three challenges laid out for the Institute by ICPAS Adviser, Mr Teo Ser Luck, Minister of 
State for Trade and Industry at last year’s AGM:

1. For the Institute to spearhead productivity movement within the accountancy sector. 
2. For ICPAS to become a member-centric Institute with more avenues for members to network and bond socially. 
3. For ICPAS to carry out leadership renewal and rejuvenation.

In respect of the first challenge on raising productivity, the Chairman recounted that the Institute’s Industry Development 
Division has done much over the past year to increase the level of industry engagement, particularly with the SMPs and 
had scored a number of firsts with its targeted initiatives to boost productivity and capability. 

These efforts included the “ICPAS Productivity Scorecard and Benchmarking Survey”, the “ICPAS Pilot Productivity 
Study”, the “ICPAS Directory” and the formation of an informal SMP network, “OneSMP”, all of which received positive 
feedback from the SMP community. 

On the second challenge to engender a member-centric Institute, the Chairman said that the Institute remains committed 
to delivering value to its members. 

Two of the key programmes under this are the “ICPAS Breakfast Talk Series” and “ICPAS Mingles”. These initiatives were 
launched as holistic platforms combining learning and networking opportunities aimed at boosting members’ professional 
development and fostering camaraderie amongst them. The Chairman also made mention of the success that has been 
achieved with attendance at the “ICPAS Breakfast Talk Series” and “ICPAS Mingles” doubling since their inception.

Next, as part of a robust programme to enhance the capabilities of our members, the Institute expanded its Technical 
Division to include the Professional Development and Quality Assurance (QA) Departments to form the Technical 
Standards Development and Advisory (TSDA) team.
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The TSDA team is tasked with enhancing the technical support provided to our members and had rolled out a suite of 
programmes that include the “SSQC1 Support Framework” and the “Quality Assurance Review (QAR) Programme” to 
support practitioners in the implementation of the “Singapore Standard on Quality Control” and to promote audit quality 
among public accountants respectively. In addition, TSDA had held 10 rounds of Technical Clinics and launched an Online 
Technical Forum which garnered positive feedback and participation from members. 

The courses offered by the Continuing Professional Education (CPE) Department were also expanded to ensure that 
members have access to the latest updates in professional development. 100 new CPE courses were introduced last year 
of which the seminar on “ICPAS Budget 2013 Update and its Tax Implications Seminar” was the most popular, attracting 
around 650 participants. The Chairman noted that the resounding support shown is a testament to the quality and 
relevance of the Institute’s programmes. 

Rounding off the key technical highlights is the Institute’s efforts to develop CFO talent. The Chairman shared that amongst 
the Institute’s membership base of professional accountants in business (PAIBs), a significant segment of 25 per cent 
comprises Chief Financial Officers and senior professionals.

The Institute, noting the need to build a talent pipeline of CFOs for the accountancy and finance sectors, formulated a 
strategic CFO framework that provides a holistic approach in meeting the needs of CFOs and aspiring CFOs. As part of 
the framework, the Institute conducted a “CFO Needs Survey” in September 2012 to better understand their needs. 

Over 300 finance leaders took part in the survey and the survey results were covered extensively by the mainstream media. 
Encouraging participant feedback was also received which commended the Institute’s efforts to further the dialogue and 
understand the evolving role of CFOs.

Other than the survey, the Institute had also successfully organised the “ICPAS CFO Roundtable” and “ICPAS CFO Forum” 
where industry thought leaders were invited to share their insights on how the role of a CFO has changed and what can 
be done to help them stay ahead of the curve. The event, as noted by the Chairman, received positive support from the 
attendees who urged the Institute to continue with its initiatives to bring members to the next level.

Complementing the aforementioned CFO initiatives is a collaboration with AON to launch four seminars on risk 
management for CFOs. The Institute had also introduced the “CFO Pilot Mentoring Programme” in Mach 2013 as a 
platform for senior members to share their vast experience with younger members. This is part of the Institute’s effort to 
engender a mentoring culture such that there is constant support to build the CFO talent base. 

The Chairman also spoke at length about leadership renewal and rejuvenation. He mentioned that the average age of the 
Council has been steadily reduced from an average age of 58 in 2009 to 50 in 2013.  

This signals that the Institute takes a serious and active stance towards introducing new talent in order to create a vibrant 
and balanced team representing the diversity and vibrancy of the profession. The injection of fresh leadership talent is 
part of the active and dynamic process to ensure leadership renewal and revitalisation. 

He shared that the Institute, with the six distinguished professionals who will be joining the Council this year, will have 
a total of 13 new Council Members over the span of two years. This means that more than half of the current Council is 
made up of new talent who bring with them new ideas, perspectives, and diverse experience to the Institute in order to 
continually serve our members better. 

Nonetheless, the Chairman shared that the focus is not so much to continually reduce the average age of the Council, but 
rather, to encourage younger members to join the Institute and be part of the exciting process of charting the Institute’s 
future. 

The Chairman then moved on to provide a summary of the Institute’s efforts to grow its global presence. 
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In alignment with the Institute’s vision to be a globally recognised professional accountancy body, the Institute actively 
engaged international organisations and participated in global and regional events to enhance relations and forge 
partnerships with influential global bodies like the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) and the World Bank.

The Institute collaborated with IFAC to organise the “IFAC SMP Forum” and participated in the International Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board’s (IAASB) Roundtable on “Improving the Auditor’s Report”. The IFAC SMP event was attended 
by over 200 delegates from 40 professional accountancy organisations in 26 countries. The Institute also submitted a 
comment letter to IAASB on the Roundtable topic.  

Further international collaborations included working with the World Bank on a proposal to narrow development gaps 
among professional bodies in the ASEAN region which was also showcased at an ASEAN Federation of Accountants 
(AFA) meeting. In addition, the Institute partnered with the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) to conduct 
the ICPAS-IIRC “The Future of Corporate Reporting” Roundtable which was presided over by the Chairman and CEO of 
IIRC, Mr Paul Druckman.

These efforts served to raise the profile of the Institute on the global stage and also positioned the Institute as an advocate 
for Singapore’s accountancy profession.

Besides raising its global footprint, the Institute also actively gave back to society. Not only did the Institute donated 
$10,000 to the President’s Challenge, it also helped in spreading awareness and getting pledges from the accounting and 
business community to support the Corrupt Practices Investigation Bureau’s (CPIB) International Anti-Corruption Day.

After recounting the Institute’s key initiatives and activities for the past year, the Chairman unveiled key plans that will 
continue to propel the Institute forward in its transformation. 

The Strategic Plan 2013-2015 builds upon the foundation laid in 2012. To support the Institute’s vision to become a globally 
recognised professional accountancy body, bringing value to our members, the profession and the wider community, the 
Institute has identified three distinct missions:

1. Play a strategic as well as complementary role with other key stakeholders to advance and promote the accountancy 
profession and sector, and help transform Singapore into a leading global accountancy hub.

2. Be the voice of members and the profession.
3. Empower members with the necessary skills and knowledge to achieve their professional aspirations.

The Chairman also shared the three success outcomes and their supporting strategic priorities:

Success Outcomes 
1. Be a reputable and respected membership body.
2. Be valued as a strategic partner by key stakeholders.
3. Be an employer of choice.   

Strategic Priorities
1. Understand members’ needs and develop meaningful initiatives.
2. Develop strong engagement and collaboration with stakeholders and partners.
3. Achieve organisational effectiveness and build a dynamic work culture.
4. Strengthen branding and communications.

The Institute has made good progress with the aforementioned initiatives serving as a good base for the Institute to build 
upon in delivering value to members. Complementing the activities conducted so far is the Institute’s membership survey 
which was conducted in the first quarter of 2013 to understand the diverse needs of members and how best to support 
those needs.

The Chairman highlighted that about 84 per cent of respondents were satisfied with their membership and that 81 percent 
of them indicated that they are proud to be ICPAS members. The Institute will continue to reference the survey findings 
to develop future initiatives for members.
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Moving on, the Chairman announced that 2013 would be an exciting year for the Institute as not only was it appointed 
as a Designated Entity to confer the “Chartered Accountant of Singapore” designation; it is also celebrating its 50th 
Anniversary.

As the new “Chartered Accountant of Singapore” designation will replace the “CPA Singapore” designation with effect from 
July 2013, the Institute will undergo a re-branding exercise with a proposed name change to the “Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants” (ISCA), which the Institute would be seeking members’ approval during the AGM. 

The Chairman shared that if the proposed name change is approved, the Institute would work towards unveiling its new 
name and logo at the highly anticipated Singapore Accountancy Convention (SAC) 2013 and Golden Jubilee Dinner on  
2 July 2013. 

The Institute is privileged to have Deputy Prime Minister and Minister for Finance, Mr Tharman Shanmugaratnam, as the 
Guest-of-Honour for the Convention, while President of Singapore, Dr Tony Tan Keng Yam, will be the Guest-of-Honour 
for the Golden Jubilee Dinner.  

The theme for the SAC 2013 is, “Singapore Chartered Accountant: A Beacon of the Asian Economy”, and is based on the 
next phase of growth for the accountancy profession, and its significance to the development of Singapore as a leading 
global accountancy hub. 

The Institute is also proud to have successfully invited a panel of renowned international and local speakers who would be 
sharing their valuable insights on key events shaping the global and local accountancy landscape. 

Additionally, the Chairman shared that the Institute has produced a number of limited edition commemorative items 
such as the gold coin, the coffee-table book and commemorative stamps that members can purchase to remember the 
milestones that they have achieved together with the Institute. Furthermore, he made mention of the strong interest and 
support from members of one of the Institute’s 50th Anniversary activities, the “Accountants at Play” photo competition. 

The Chairman also shared two videos featuring the Chief Executive of the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority 
(ACRA), Mr Kenneth Yap, and the Commissioner of Inland Revenue and Chief Executive Officer of Inland Revenue 
Authority of Singapore (IRAS), Dr Tan Kim Siew, who congratulated the Institute on its transformation efforts. 

The Chairman expressed his appreciation to his fellow Council members for devoting time and effort to serving the 
Institute and providing strategic counsel. He mentioned that seven new Council members came on board in 2012 and 
thanked Mr Vincent Lim, who heads the ICPAS Community, Social & Sports Advisory Panel, and Ms Lim Kexin, who leads 
the ICPAS Young Professionals Advisory Committee, for their individual contributions towards introducing initiatives like 
the “ICPAS Mingles” networking session and the “ICPAS Membership Survey” respectively. He also thanked Mr Max Loh, 
Ms Danielle Yew, Ms Genevieve Chua, Mr Michael Chin and Mr Frankie Chia for offering their professional expertise and 
their participation in the Institute’s committees and Council meetings.

The Chairman also expressed his thanks to the Council members who would be stepping down at the AGM, namely  
Mr Peter Chay, Mr Don Ho, Mr Sitoh Yih Pin, Mr Tan Boen Eng and Ms Yim Kam May. He especially expressed his gratitude 
to Mr Tan Boen Eng who had played an instrumental role in the development of the profession and the growth of the 
Institute. In addition, he mentioned the significant strides made, strong international ties forged and the expansion of the 
accounting talent pool through the former joint examination scheme with ACCA, as some of the key achievements under 
Mr Tan’s leadership as ICPAS President from 1995 to 2008. 

In addition, the Chairman thanked various government stakeholders like the Ministry of Finance (MOF), the Accounting 
and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA), the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore (IRAS) and the Singapore 
Accountancy Commission (SAC) for working closely with the Institute on the shared vision of making Singapore a global 
accountancy hub. 
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Next, the Chairman thanked ICPAS Advisor, Minister Teo Ser Luck, for his support, time, wise counsel and strategic advice. 
Furthermore, he expressed his appreciation for the Institute’s management team as well as the staff for their hard work.  He 
also offered his heartfelt thanks to members for their unwavering and continuing support of the Institute’s transformation.

Last but not least, the Chairman mentioned that the term 2013/2014 would be his last year serving the Institute as President. 
He shared that during his tenure, he felt encouraged and heartened by the progress that had been made and the positive 
feedback received so far. He will continue to work hard and together with members strive towards the Institute’s vision 
to be a globally recognised professional accountancy body and bring value to our members, the profession and the wider 
community. 

Going forward, the Chairman said the Institute would like to encourage more members to step forward and serve, and 
together lead the Institute to a brighter future for all. 

3.   CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2011/2012 

3.1  The minutes of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2011/2012 held on 28 April 2012, having been circulated to all members, 
were taken as read. 

3.2  Mr Andrew Kuan Yoke Loon, FCPA Singapore, sought clarification on the inconsistent reflection of the members’ 
designation in the minutes of the last AGM.

3.3  Ms Janet Tan, Executive Director (Corporate Services) apologised for the oversight and indicated that going forward, the 
Institute would ensure that the designation of members would be duly recorded. 

3.4  On the proposal of Mr Andrew Kuan Yoke Loon, FCPA Singapore, and as seconded by Mr Vincent Lim Boon Seng, CPA 
Singapore, the minutes of the AGM 2011/2012 were approved. 

3.5  The Chairman then declared that the minutes had been confirmed. 

4.   ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2012/2013

4.1  The Chairman referred the members to the Annual Report of the Council for the year 2012/2013 and the Accounts for the 
Institute for the year ended 31 December 2012 and invited comments from the members present. The Chairman added 
that as the annual report had been previously circulated to members, it would be considered as read. 

4.2  Mr Chow Kam Wing, CPA Singapore, noted that the Institute’s membership fee constitutes only about 20 per cent of the 
Institute’s revenue stream and asked whether there would be a change in the revenue composition after the introduction 
of the Singapore QP.  

4.3  The Chairman explained that the membership fee has indeed been kept affordable, noting that it had not been raised for 
26 years until the recent increase in 2012, and that most of the revenue came from the Institute’s training arm. 

4.4  Going forward, the Chairman explained that as the Institute continues its transformation into a globally recognised 
professional accountancy body, it has made key investments, for example, in the senior management team, who will drive 
many of the Institute’s initiatives. 

4.5 In addition, the Institute needs to keep up with a rapidly changing landscape which may require the Council to take 
necessary steps to make investments that enables the Institute to adapt to evolving needs. Nonetheless, the Chairman 
assured members that the Council will exercise care and take a measured and balanced approach while keeping in view 
the Institute’s objectives to bring value to members as well as to position the Institute as a global accountancy body. 

4.6  Mr Tan See Peng, CPA Singapore, said that he would like to refer to ICPAS Adviser, Mr Teo Ser Luck, Minister of State 
for Trade and Industry’s three challenges. Firstly, on the point about raising productivity in the accountancy sector, he 
enquired if an IT subcommittee has been formed to harness IT to improve productivity.
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4.7  Secondly, he would like to know whether the Institute has found a permanent place to facilitate networking amongst 
members and thirdly, where can members report incidences or suspicions of wrongdoing.

4.8 The Chairman replied that in reference to Mr Tan’s first question, the Institute has embarked on productivity initiatives a 
year ago and has looked into different ways to help SMPs leverage on shared services such as IT to raise productivity.

4.9  Mr Lee Fook Chiew, ICPAS CEO, added that an Information Technology Services Advisory Panel has in fact been 
established with the mission to advise the Institute on IT-related matters in meeting its strategic objectives and to advance 
the members’ interest in the adoption of IT. He also shared that getting SMPs to adopt technology to boost productivity is 
an area of focus amongst its initiatives. An example is the Institute’s collaboration with two consortia of SMPs to participate 
in the Infocomm Development Authority of Singapore’s (IDA) “Call-for-collaboration” (CFC) for “Software-as-a-Service 
(Saas) to spur demand for and adoption of cloud technology amongst SMPs. 

4.10  With regard to the question on having a permanent premise to facilitate networking opportunities amongst members, the 
Chairman replied that the Council and Senior Management have been actively looking into the matter. They understand 
that the current location in Aljunied may be inconvenient for members and that a more suitable location is needed to serve 
as the Institute’s headquarters.

4.11  The Chairman shared that a potential premise has been found and it will be proposed to the Council for their consideration 
at a meeting taking place after the AGM. Besides the fact that it is located conveniently in town and near public transport, 
the rental rate offered is reasonable. He indicated that more information will be shared at a later time. Nonetheless, 
the Chairman said that the Institute will look into the suggestion to set aside some space for members in the Institute’s  
future home. 

4.12  To address Mr Tan’s third question on morality and ethics, the Chairman said that as accountants, there is a Code of Ethics 
to abide by and that the Institute’s Code is aligned with IFAC’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” which sets 
out guidelines for three segments – “General application of the IFAC Code”, “Professional Accountants in Public Practice” 
and “Professional Accountants in Business”. 

4.13  The Chairman said that the points raised by Mr Tan are good as these are very fundamental in nature and would affect the 
credibility of the Institute as a professional body. 

4.14  The Chairman elaborated that public accountants are regulated by the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority 
(ACRA). For Professional Accountants in Business (PAIBs), the Chairman shared that the Institute has its own Investigation 
Committee that will look into ethical breaches by PAIBs. However, the Chairman also noted that Mr Tan may be alluding 
to whistle-blowing. 

4.15  He mentioned that the Institute would receive letters on such matters from time to time which the Institute will deem as 
whistle blowing. But it would be difficult for the Investigation Committee to follow up on these if such submissions are 
made anonymously. 

4.16  He also reassured members that all information will be managed confidentially and that the Institute takes matters 
regarding ethical violations very seriously. 

4.17  Mr Tan then raised another question on the status of the Institute’s efforts to encourage members to take up  
volunteer work.

4.18  The Chairman replied that he felt encouraged by the commitment that members have shown for volunteer work and 
mentioned that the Institute has signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the People’s Association (PA) in 
2010 to encourage members to volunteer with Grassroots Organisations (GROs). 

4.19  He made mention that more than 100 CPAs Singapore have been admitted so far into the programme and had received 
good reviews of how enriching the experience has been. 
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4.20  But the Chairman also mentioned that he understands that there has been feedback that the PA has not gotten back to 
some members who have submitted their forms previously. He said that he has channeled the issue to PA and that they 
will look into the matter. 

4.21  The Chairman rounded off by encouraging more members to do volunteer work and that the Institute encourages members 
to give back to society. 

4.22  Mr Basant Kumar Dugar, FCPA Singapore, referred to the statement of comprehensive income and made some suggestions 
on how ICPAS can independently earn its own profits apart from SAA-GE. 

4.23  He suggested turning functions and events of the Institute into profit generating ones. For example, the AGM could be 
converted into a marketing event and extend ICPAS’ services to serve different market sectors locally and regionally  
in ASEAN. 

4.24  The next suggestion he gave was to turn the Institute’s office at 6 Raffles Quay, which it is currently rented out, into an 
events venue to earn more profits, given its central location in the CBD area and its proximity to prominent members of 
the profession in the financial sector. 

4.25  Moving on, Mr Dugar referred to Note 17 of the Annual Report on cash and cash equivalent, where he suggested that the 
significant cash balances in “Non-interest bearing accounts” be put to productive use. 

4.26  He also highlighted the need to evaluate the Institute’s assets, current and fixed, to determine the percentage which 
is income-generating. This is so that the Institute can do the necessary adjustments to move towards all assets being  
income-generating. 

4.27  Mr Dugar then referred to the “Cash flows from operating activities” in the Statements of Cashflow and suggested that, 
should the Institute be in a position to list on SGX in the future, a positive operating income earned would look attractive to 
investors as it indicates the Institute’s good financial management. However, the reduction in positive cash generated from 
operating activities needs to be addressed by ensuring that returns on investing and financing activities remain strong. 
Next, Mr Dugar opined on the appropriateness of the depreciation of the Institute’s freehold assets being in line with its 
proper up-keep of the properties.

4.28  Lastly, Mr Dugar referred to the current 17 per cent tax rate and suggested that perhaps the Institute can seek, from the 
Ministry of Finance or the Prime Minister’s office, some form of tax exemption or subsidy on the basis that the Institute is 
in the education sector and is raising overall productivity in line with the government’s drive currently in place. 

4.29  The Chairman referred to Mr Dugar’s first suggestion on profitability and the Institute’s financial standing. He replied that 
he agreed that it important for the Institute to approach the running of its events with a marketing mindset so that it is able 
to ensure that the activities are self-financing or is able to generate some profit. 

4.30  However, with regard to events like the AGM, the Chairman shared that the Institute has not charged its members to 
attend all these years and that the guiding philosophy is that the Institute would like to encourage as many members as 
possible to come for this once-a-year event. So if the Institute has done well, and it is within its means, the Institute will 
bear the expenses in organising the AGM to facilitate greater member engagement. Nonetheless, the Chairman said that 
the Institute will take note of Mr Dugar’s suggestion to turn the AGM into a marketing event whereby members are charged  
a fee. 

4.31  The Treasurer added that he agreed with Mr Dugar’s point on having financial discipline. He shared that when the budget 
exercise for 2013 was conducted, the guideline set for major events is that they need to be self-financing. Furthermore, 
the Treasurer shared that it has been communicated from the Executive Committee to the Senior Management that the 
Institute has to budget for surplus or achieve at minimum a breakeven position as far as possible.

4.32  This underscores the financial discipline that Mr Dugar has implied and the Treasurer assured members that it has in fact 
been in practice in the Institute’s budgeting process. 
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4.33  The Chairman then noted Mr Dugar’s views and suggestions on the income earning assets, cashflow statement, operating 
income, the Institute’s investing activities, useful life of assets and tax matters. He said that with regards to tax matters, the 
Institute needs to abide by the government’s regulations and that if the Institute is required to pay tax, then it will have to 
do so.

4.34  The Chairman added that the Institute is careful in the way it manages its balance sheet and income statement and that it 
is mindful that there is a due process in place in creating and evaluating the budget.

4.35  He reinforces this by saying that the budget goes through a few rounds of evaluation via the finance function within the 
Institute before being reviewed by senior management, then the Executive Committee, followed by the Audit Committee 
and lastly to the Council for approval.

4.36  In addition, when the Institute taps on the approved budget within the year, there is also a due process in place for staff 
to seek approval for funds to be used for the Institute’s activities. Therefore, the Chairman is confident that the process in 
place is robust and rigorous enough for the budget approval process. 

4.37  Furthermore, the Chairman mentioned that the Institute has engaged internal auditors over the last few years to review 
its financial and internal control system. This is coupled with the external audits that the Institute has engaged as well.  
So in terms of the due process in place, the Chairman reassured members that the Council, management team and the 
Audit Committee have reviewed its robustness independently to ensure that the Institute’s funds are used appropriately 
for the good of the Institute and its members. 

4.38  Mr Dugar then reiterated his suggestion that every function in the Institute be geared towards becoming a profit centre.  
While he has no questions on the accountability and due processes in place, he is merely suggesting that for every dollar 
spent on a member, the member should also contribute back to the Institute, for example, by helping to increase its 
membership base or in getting sponsorship.  He felt that it is each existing member’s responsibility to be forthcoming with 
ideas to the Institute to enhance the Institute’s profitability and strengthen its financial position. 

4.39 The Chairman noted his suggestion and agreed that Mr Dugar’s suggestion for members to help in getting sponsorship is a 
good idea and that the Institute will look into the matter.

4.40  As no further matters were raised, the Annual Report of the Institute for 2012/2013 and the Accounts of the Institute 
for the year ended 31 December 2012 were received by the meeting, as proposed by Mr David Phua Puay Heng, FCPA 
Singapore, and seconded by Mr Chow Kam Wing, CPA Singapore. 

5.   ELECTION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS 

5.1  The Chairman informed that the following members of the Council had retired in accordance with the provisions of the 
Article 48 to 50 of the Constitution. 

CPAs Singapore who are Public Accountants:

Mr Peter Chay Fook Yuen
Mr Don Ho Mun-Tuke
Mr Max Loh Khum Whai
Mr Sitoh Yih Pin

CPAs Singapore who are not Public Accountants:

Mr Ho Tuck Chuen
Assoc Professor Ho Yew Kee 
Mr Tan Boen Eng
Ms Yim Kam May
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5.2  As only 8 nominations have been received from CPAs Singapore in accordance with Article 50 of the Constitution, these 
8 CPAs Singapore are deemed to be duly elected members of the Council for a two-year term as from the conclusion of 
this Annual General Meeting. They are:

CPAs Singapore who are Public Accountants:

Mr Paul Lee Seng Meng
Mr Max Loh Khum Whai
Mr Ong Pang Thye
Mr Tan Khoon Guan

CPAs Singapore who are not Public Accountants:

Mr Chan Hon Chew
Mr Ho Tuck Chuen
Assoc Professor Ho Yew Kee 
Mr Lee Wai Fai

6.   APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

6.1  The re-appointment of Messrs Baker Tilly TFW LLP as Auditors of the Institute for the financial year ending 31 December 
2013 and the authorisation for the Council to fix their remuneration was approved, as proposed by Mr Vincent Lim Boon 
Seng, CPA Singapore, and seconded by Mr Basant Kumar Dugar, FCPA Singapore.

6.2  The Chairman then polled the members present on the confirmation of the appointment. From the poll results, the 
Chairman declared that the appointment has been confirmed.

6.3  Mr Basant Kumar Dugar, FCPA Singapore, suggested an idea of how auditors could help to expedite and reduce the time 
for the financial audit and have an earlier AGM which would facilitate profit planning. This could be achieved through the 
use of cloud computing or perpetual audits. The Chairman noted his suggestion.

7.   SPECIAL RESOLUTION TO CHANGE THE INSTITUTE’S NAME AND AMEND THE INSTITUTE’S CONSTITUTION 

7.1  The Chairman said that under the Singapore Accountancy Commission Act (SAC Act), there will be an introduction of a 
new professional designation, the “Chartered Accountant of Singapore”, and the Institute has been named as a Designated 
Entity to confer the designation on behalf of the SAC. 

7.2 In light of its new role, the Institute will be changing its name and revising its Constitution to align itself with the new 
designation.

7.3  Executive Director (Corporate Services), Ms Janet Tan then gave a presentation of the special resolution relating to the 
change of the Institute’s name and the amendments to the Institute’s Constitution. 

7.4  She reiterated that as a Designated Entity under the Singapore Accountancy Commission Act responsible for the 
registration and conferment of the “Chartered Accountant of Singapore” designation, the Institute will be changing 
its name to align with the new designation. With regard to the new name, she shared that the Institute had conducted  
a research making reference to the naming convention by overseas accountancy bodies and considered various factors 
such as:

1. the inclusion of the words “Singapore”, “Chartered Accountants” and “Institute”; 
2. the acronym for the new name should not clash with existing known foreign accountancy bodies as well as local 

bodies; and
3. there is no negative connotation in the acronym for the new name.
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7.5  She shared that a poll was conducted among members from 19 to 26 February 2013 to seek members’ choice of three 
options of the proposed name. A total of 3,336 members responded to the poll and 68 per cent of respondents voted 
for “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants” (ISCA). The Council at the AGM has endorsed the name “ISCA” and 
Article 1 of the amended Constitution will provide for the change in the Institute’s name.

7.6  Executive Director (Corporate Services) then highlighted the salient amendments to ICPAS’ Constitution covering areas 
such as the inclusion of new definitions, replacing references to “CPA Singapore” with the new designation, ”Chartered 
Accountant of Singapore”, new articles arising from the SAC Act, inclusion of the clause “subject to the SAC Act in respect 
of registration as a Chartered Accountant” in affected Articles, revision of the existing transitional arrangements and 
inclusion of a transitional provision.

7.7  The Chairman then drew members’ attention to the special resolution on the Agenda that the name of the Institute be 
changed to “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants” and the name “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants” 
be substituted for “Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore” in so far as it is necessary for preserving the 
effect of the Constitution or any written rules or documents whenever the latter name appears as such and the Constitution 
of the Institute be amended in the manner and to the extent as set out in the Appendix enclosed in the Notice. The change 
of name and the Amendment shall take effect from such date as determined by the Council. 

7.8  Mr Kwa Tze Hong, FCPA Singapore, shared his views on the name change from the “Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
of Singapore” to the “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants”. 

7.9  Firstly, he felt that the Institute should perhaps re-consider the name change as there is a lot of good will, reputation and 
brand awareness attached to the “CPA Singapore” designation.

7.10  Secondly, he expressed concern that the use of “Chartered Accountants” in the new designation may not be appropriate 
as the word “chartered” in respect of the various chartered accountancy bodies is derived from a Royal Charter rather 
than from government legislation. 

7.11  Thirdly, he felt that the Institute should continue to draw and build on its membership base locally in its efforts to bolster 
the reputation of the profession as he has some concerns that foreign talent may not possess the same educational and 
professional grounding.

7.12  Lastly, he opined that the Singapore Qualification Programme (Singapore QP) is not an established programme yet and 
may not be able to contribute to the building of Singapore’s reputation as an accounting hub. 

7.13  The Chairman responded that he understands that the name change is a very emotional matter as members have identified 
with the name for a long time. He made reference to professional bodies with CPA members in countries like America, 
China and Japan whose designations are similar to the Institute’s and equally well respected. 

7.14  The Chairman shared that the Institute had provided feedback on the CPA designation used by the bodies in large 
economies to the government and there were also active discussions on the way forward. 

7.15  He further shared that the designation, “Chartered Accountants of Singapore” is decided and legislated by the government, 
which had also conducted its own research prior to its adoption.

7.16 Furthermore, after much discussion, it was concluded that, in order to avoid confusion and with the Singapore QP 
designed to be a globally portable and recognised programme, it would be better to align the Institute’s name with the new 
“Chartered Accountant of Singapore” designation.

7.17  In addition, the Chairman mentioned that the Institute had undergone a name change previously in its effort to evolve with 
the times. In 1989, the Institute’s name was changed from the Singapore Society of Accountants (SSA) to the “Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants of Singapore”, with the designation “CPA Singapore”. 

7.18  He reassured members that the name change is a matter taken seriously by both the Institute and the government and that 
due process had been undertaken before deciding on the final name.
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7.19  The Chairman added that the Institute had also gone through a due process of consultation whereby the management 
had conducted its own research into what would constitute an appropriate name and polled members on 3 options of the 
name. The various options had also been reviewed by both the Executive Committee and Council before being put to 
members for approval at the AGM.

7.20  The Chairman shared that all 26,000 members were invited to participate in the online survey, and a large majority (68 per 
cent) of the members who responded picked “ISCA”. 

7.21  The Chairman added that the views of the Institute’s members are important which is why a survey was conducted, and 
with close to 70 per cent of respondents voting for ISCA, it indicates a strong mandate for the membership body to move 
forward with the name change. 

7.22  Mr Kwa Tze Hong, FCPA Singapore, commented that he felt the due process to seek members’ opinion on the name 
change may not be extensive enough in terms of the respondent size of the online survey, and the time and means used to 
reach out to members regarding the matter. 

7.23  He shared that the Institute should have expanded its communications channel to include sending letters to every member, 
on top of emails, and give them more time to respond. Additionally, the motion should go through a few rounds of voting 
before coming to a decision. 

7.24  Mr Kwa also reiterated that the new “Chartered Accountant of Singapore” designation may not enjoy the equivalent 
standing of “CPA Singapore” on the international stage and felt that it should not be changed given the brand equity 
accumulated over the decades despite the new designation being legislated by the government. 

7.25  Mr Tan See Peng, CPA Singapore, another member, however countered that even though the “Chartered Accountant” 
designation was conferred by Royal Charter in the past, in the present context, it is still well-respected and conveys a 
certain professional standing. Therefore, he urged members to move ahead with the times and adopt the new designation 
particularly that it is legislated by the government. 

7.26  The Chairman said that the Institute respects Mr Kwa’s views and shared that from a statistical point of view, the survey 
response is actually robust enough. 

7.27  Mr Basant Kumar Dugar, FCPA Singapore, suggested that the name be changed to the “Institute of Chartered Accountants 
in Singapore” with the country name behind, to align itself with the naming convention of overseas accounting bodies. 

7.28  The Chairman replied that the acronym for the “Institute of Chartered Accountants in Singapore” is “ICAS” which is the 
same acronym for an existing accounting body, the “Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland” and would create 
confusion on the international arena. 

7.29  Mr Philip Siew Tin Gin, FCPA Singapore, noted that the designation is legally owned by the SAC and the conferrer could 
be ICPAS or another body.

7.30  ICPAS CEO mentioned that there is a difference between using the designation and making reference to the said 
designation and in this regard, the Institute has been advised to inform SAC on the new name which it had done so. 

7.31  Mr Ng Joo Khin, ICPAS Legal Counsel drew members’ attention to section 25(7) of the SAC Act highlighting that the 
concept of “Chartered Accountant” in the Act is in respect of an individual carrying the designation and not the name of 
the Society. In essence, there is nothing to stop someone from forming a society or organisation with the words “Chartered 
Accountants” so long there is no misrepresentation. 

7.32  He further clarified that the government does not have any proprietary interest over the two words “Chartered Accountants” 
and as the Act addresses the person carrying the “Chartered Accountant” designation, it is the Institute’s responsibility,  
as the designated entity, to ensure that the person is duly qualified and duly registered before he/she can carry the title. 
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7.33  He indicated that as the Institute is under the control of the Registry of Societies (ROS), it would need to seek the ROS’ 
approval on the change of name after it has been put to vote by members at the AGM.

7.34  As there were no further comments, the Chairman then proceeded to put the change of the Institute’s name and the 
amendments to the Constitution to a vote. Two members, Mr Yee Fook Hong, FCPA Singapore and Ms Yim Kam May, 
FCPA Singapore, witnessed the counting of the votes. 

8.   RESULTS OF VOTING

Total Number of Votes Cast (including proxies held)  590
Number of votes FOR the resolution  557
Number of votes AGAINST the resolution  19
Number of votes rejected  14

8.1  The consent of at least two-thirds of the voting members present is required to pass the special resolution to change the 
Institute’s name to “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants” and to amend the Institute’s Constitution. With 94.4 per 
cent of votes supporting the name change and the amendments, the resolution is therefore carried.

9.    TERMINATION OF MEETING

9.1  In conclusion, the Chairman cited Rules 16 and 17 of the ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules which provided that no motion 
shall be discussed at any annual general meeting of the Institute unless the required notice of 28 days has been given. 
As the secretary had not received any notice and all items on the agenda had been dealt with, the meeting was formally 
declared closed at 5.30 pm. 

Signed as a correct record  

Chairman
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING LUNCH REPLY FORM

[Note: Registration can be done online at http://agm.isca.org.sg/login.php. With online registration, you do not need to post this form.]

Please do not insert the lunch reply form into the ballot envelope as the envelope will only be opened during the counting of the votes 
at the AGM.

INSTITUTE OF SINGAPORE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

60 Cecil Street, ISCA House, 6th Floor, Singapore 049709
Tel: (65) 6749 8060
Fax: (65) 6749 8061

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING LUNCH

Lunch will be served at 12.45 pm, followed by the Annual General Meeting at 2.00 pm. To assist the Secretariat in the lunch 
arrangements, please return this reply form to the Institute by 11 April 2014.

I will be attending the AGM lunch on Saturday, 19 April 2014, at 12.45 pm, at Marina Mandarin, Marina Mandarin Ballroom,  
Level 1, 6 Raffles Boulevard, Marina Square, Singapore 039594.

Member’s Name (in block):

I/C Number:

Membership Category: * Fellow / Chartered Accountant of Singapore / Associate

Company: 

Designation:

Contact Number: (Mobile)                                              (Office)                                              (Home)                                              

E-mail address: 

                          (Confirmation of registration will be sent to this email address)

Date: ____________________________________________________________________________

Please tick if *Vegetarian/Muslim menu is required

Note: The lunch menu will be ‘no pork, no lard’.

*Please delete where inapplicable.

NB:    To avoid unnecessary costs to the Institute, please               
           inform the Secretariat at least 3 days before the       
           function if you have registered but subsequently 
           are unable to attend the AGM lunch.

     Signature



Affix 
Postage 
Stamp

INSTITUTE OF SINGAPORE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
60 CECIL STREET

6th FLOOR, ISCA HOUSE
SINGAPORE 049709

fold here

fold here



FORM OF PROXY

THE SCHEDULE
Rule 33

INSTITUTE (GENERAL MEETINGS) RULES

I, _________________________________________________________________________________________________________, _____________________________________________________________________________________________
   (Full Name in Block) (NRIC/Passport Number)

of _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
   (Address)

being a member of the Institute, do hereby appoint:

NAME ADDRESS NRIC /PASSPORT 
NUMBER

or failing him/her

NAME ADDRESS NRIC /PASSPORT 
NUMBER

each of whom is a CA (Singapore) of ISCA as my proxy to vote for me at the Annual General Meeting of the Institute to be held 
on 19 April 2014 and any adjournment of such meeting.

Signature of member: ____________________________________________________________

Dated this _________________________  day of _________________________________________________2014

NOTES: 

A Member entitled to vote may appoint as his proxy any other Member who is entitled to vote except that no member shall be 
entitled to vote by proxy in the election of a member or members of the Council. 
[Rule 32, Institute (General Meetings) Rules]

The proxy shall not be entitled to vote at a meeting unless the instrument of proxy has been deposited with the Chief Executive 
Officer not less than 48 hours before the date and time fixed for the meeting. 
[Rule 36, Institute (General Meetings) Rules]

fold here

fold here







60 Cecil Street, ISCA House
Singapore 049709

Telephone: (65) 6749 8060
Facsimile: (65) 6749 8061
E-Mail: isca@isca.org.sg

Website: www.isca.org.sg


